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1, Wollgang Struss, of Redmond, Washington, Businessman, SWEAR AND SAY THAT:

1. [ am the President, CEO, and sole director of MicroPlanet Technology Corp. ("MTC" or
the "Company"). T am also President, CEO, and sole director of MTC’s wholly-owned US
subsidiary, MicroPlanet, Inc. ("MII"). As such, | have personal knowledge of the matters
hereinafter deposed to, except where stated to be based on information and belief, in which
case [ verily believe the same to be true.

2. All capitalized terms not otherwise defined in this Affidavit shall bear the meaning given
to them in my Affidavit sworn on December 5, 2016 (the "Struss Affidavit No. 1") and all
references to dollars or "$" in this Affidavit are in Canadian dollars unless otherwise stated.

3. [ make this Affidavit in response to a letter sent by Myron Tétreault to the email service
list on December 12, 2016 (the "Tétreaunlt Letter") and to correct an inadvertent error in
an exhibit to the Struss Affidavit No. 1,
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In the Struss Affidavit No. 1 at paragraph 65(c), I attached a copy of a November 4, 2016
letter sent by my counsel, Alexis Teasdale to Brett Ironside's counsel David Mann as
Exhibit "30". The attachments to the November 4, 2016 letter, namely copies of the EVI
Security Agreements and a copy of MI's bylaws, were inadvertently not included in Exhibit
"30". True copies of the EVI Security Agreements are attached hereto and collectively
marked as Exhibit ""1", and true copies of MI's bylaws are attached hereto and marked as
Exhibit "2".

In the Tétreault Letter, Mr. Tétreault asserts that he and Calafate Holdings Ltd. are creditors
of MTC. As noted in the minutes of the Reconvened Meeting at Exhibit "H" to the Report
of Trustee on Proposal filed on December 6, 2016, MTC's records show that Mr. Tétreault
and Calafate appear to have redeemed their convertible notes in full. True copies of
excerpts from MTC's accounting records showing redemption payments to Mr. Tétreault
and Calafate are attached hereto and collectively marked as Exhibit "3".

At paragraph 1 of the Tétreault Letter, Mr. Tétreault asserts that GreenVolt Energy Savings
Corp. ("GEC") is a "valid creditor of [MTC]". As noted in the minutes of the Reconvened
Meeting, Mr. Tétreault stated that he and Mr. Ironside are directors of GEC. To my
knowledge, MTC does not owe anything to GEC, nor has a proof of claim been filed on
behalf of GEC.

I am informed by my review of MTC's Consolidated Audited Financial Statements for the
years ended December 31, 2005, December 31, 2006, December 31, 2007, and December
31, 2008, true excerpts of which are attached hereto and marked as Exhibit "'4", that MTC
paid $150,000 to GEC in 2005 and in 2006, a trade payable to GEC was settled by payment
of certain deferred compensation to a director who was also an owner of GEC. I have
reviewed all of MTC's Annual Consolidated Audited Financial Statements and there is no
indication of any amount owing to GEC.

In paragraph 4 of the Tétreault Letter, Mr. Tétreault suggests that I made no meaningful
efforts in the last two years to find a proposal that benefits anyone other than the Seattle
Investors. 1 have already described my significant efforts to postpone the payment of, or
restructure, MTC's debt, in paragraphs 23 to 29 of the Struss Affidavit No. 1.

First, Mr. Tétreault's assertion fails to account for the time and effort required to deal with
MI's failing operations. When 1 was appointed President and CEO of MTC, I had to
orchestrate the closure of MI's offices and manufacturing facility, and the storage of all of
its remaining assets.

Second, in addition to the efforts described in the Struss Affidavit No. 1, I was engaged in
ongoing discussions with various potential sources of financing or funding for MI's
operations, none of which was successful, despite my efforts:

(a) discussions with Craft 3 (the lender referred to in paragraph 50 of the Struss
Affidavit No. 1), a nonprofit Community Development Financial Institution based
in the US Pacific Northwest, which indicated that it could not invest until MI was
unwound from MTC and operational;

(b) discussions with Origin Energy, an Australian-based oil and gas drilling company,
to enter into a development agreement that would provide MI with US $1 Million
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in development fees, which were suspended after more than a year of negotiations
due to Origin Energy's restructuring, necessitated by the global economic downturn
in the oil and gas industry in 2015;

(©) discussions with Unison Networks Limited, a New Zealand-based utility, to enter
into a distribution agreement that would provide MI with US $500,000 in upfront
distribution fees, but which fell through after Unison's wholly-owned subsidiary
ETEL Limited completed due diligence on the deal and decided that they were
unwilling to commit; and

(d)  discussions with Maschinen Fabrik Reihausen ("MR"), a world leader in high and
medium voltage regulation technology, which started in July 2015 and continued
through to March 2016, but ultimately did not progress because MR did not wish
to invest in MTC until its debt was restructured.

Paragraph 6 of the Tétreault Letter states, in part, that [ am a creditor and shareholder of
MI. I am not a shareholder and although I have contributed my personal money to fund
MI's ongoing operations, I do not hold any debt instruments to evidence such cash
injections and | have little to no expectation of recovering the funds I have paid to ML

At paragraph 9 of the Tétreault Letter, Mr. Tétreault states that he has had "numerous
conversations" with, among others, me. Since [ was appointed President and CEO of MTC,
[ have had two, possibly three, telephone conversations with Mr. Tétreault. Although Mr.
Tétreault did mention both the concept of a royalty, and the potential value of MTC's tax
losses during some of these calls, Mr. Tétreault has provided no alternative offer or
proposal structure that is capable of consideration by MTC.

I make this Affidavit in support of MTC's application for orders approving the Amended
Amended Proposal and the sale of the MTC Asset to EVI.

SWORN BEFORE ME
at Aenrgn? , Washington, USA, this i t

_'?.// ( s ‘"‘Q'=-—-7 4

)
)
day of December 2016 )
)
)
Notary Pubhc in and for the State of )

WOLFGANG STRUSS

Washington

NOTARY PUBLIC
STATE OF WASHINGTON
RAYMOND C. VARDY
My Appointment Expires
JUNE 25, 2020

WSLEGAL\055088\00016\17266925v4




O Voo

This is Exhibit "1 " to the Affidavit of

——

Wolfeang Struss .

Sworn before me this 47 " day of

)—)QQQY“\%(‘J{. 7:"2‘)(
(o= e )
A Notary Public

In and for the State of Washington

NOTARY PUBLIC
STATE OF WASHINGTON
RAYMOND C. VARDY
My Appointment Expires
JUNE 25, 2020




LOAN AND SECURITY AGREEMENT

THIS LOAN AND SECURITY AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) dated as of June 01, 2016
(the “Effective Date”) between EMERALD VENTURES INC., a Washington corporation (“Lender”),
and MICROPLANET, INC., a Washington corporation (“Borrower”), provides the terms on which
Lender shall lend to Borrower and Borrower shall repay Lender. The parties agree as follows:

1 ACCOUNTING AND OTHER TERMS

Accounting terms not defined in this Agreement shall be construed following GAAP.
Calculations and determinations must be made following GAAP. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined
in this Agreement shall have the meanings set forth in Section 13. All other terms contained in this
Agreement, unless otherwise indicated, shall have the meaning provided by the Code to the extent such
terms are defined therein,

2 LOAN AND TERMS OF PAYMENT

2.1 Promise to Pay. Borrower hereby unconditionally promises to pay Lender the
outstanding principal amount of all Term Loan and accrued and unpaid interest thereon as and when due
in accordance with this Agreement,

2, 1.1  Term Loan.

(a) Availability. Within ten days following the Effective Date, Lender shall make a
term loan to Borrower in the amount of up to $600,000, which shall be funded in the form of Lender’s
novation and acceptance of Borrower’s indebtedness to various lenders (including but not limited to that
certain MicroPlanet Investment Fund established as of November 21, 2014) in an amount of up to
$600,000 (the “Term Loan”), subject to the satisfaction of the terms and conditions of this Agreement,

(b) Repayment. Borrower shall repay all amounts borrowed under Term Loan, plus
any and all accrued and unpaid interest with respect to Term Loan, and plus all other sums, if any, that
shall have become due and payable hereunder with respect to Term Loan, within the sooner of, (i) thirty
(30) days of the completion or dismissal of Borrower’s bankruptcy process under the Companies
Creditors’ Arrangement Act under Canadian law (the “Bankruptcy Process”), (if) within thirty (30) days
of the Lender’s notification that the Bankruptcy Process is not, in the Lender’s discretion, progressing
satisfactorily, (iil) immediately following an Event of Default (as defined below) or (iv) on the one year
anniversary of the Effective Date (the “Maturity”),

(©) Permitted Prepayment. Provided that no Event of Default has occurred and is
continuing, Borrower shall have the option to prepay all, but not less than all, of the outstanding Term
Loan, provided Borrower pays to Lender, on the date of such prepayment (A) all outstanding principal
plus accrued interest of the Term Loan, and (B) all other sums, if any, that shall have become due and
payable.

2.2 Payment of Interest,
(a) Interest Rate. Subject to Section 2.2(b), the principal amounts outstanding under

the Term Loan shall accrue interest at a per annum rate equal to 10.0%, which interest shall be payable on
Maturity.
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(b) Default Rate. Immediately upon the occurrence and during the continuance of an
Event of Default, Obligations shall bear interest at a rate per annum which is five percentage points
(5.00%) above the rate that is otherwise applicable thereto (the “Default Rate”) unless Lender otherwise
clects from time to time in its sole discretion to impose a smaller increase, Fees and expenses which are
required to be paid by Borrower pursuant to this Agreement (including, without limitation, Lender
Expenses) but are not paid when due shall bear interest until paid at a rate equal to the highest rate
applicable to the Obligations. Payment or acceptance of the increased interest rate provided in this
Section 2.2(b) is not a permitted alternative to timely payment and shall not constitute a waiver of any
Event of Default or otherwise prejudice or limit any rights or remedies of Lender.

2.3 Payments; Application of Payments. All payments (including prepayments) to be
made by Borrower under this Agreement shall be made in immediately available funds in U.S. Dollars,
without setoff or counterclaim, before 12:00 p.m. Pacific time on the date when due. Payments of
principal and/or interest received after 12:00 p.m. Pacific time are considered received at the opening of
business on the next Business Day. When a payment is due on a day that is not a Business Day, the
payment shall be due the next Business Day, and additional fees or interest, as applicable, shall continue
to accrue until paid, Borrower shall have no right to specify the order or the accounts to which Lender
shall allocate or apply any payments required to be made by Borrower to Lender or otherwise received by
Lender under this Agreement when any such allocation or application is not specified elsewhere in this
Agreement,

3 CONDITIONS OF LOANS

3.1 Conditions Precedent to Term Loan. Lender’s obligation to make each Term Loan is
subject to the condition precedent that Lender shall have received, in form and substance satisfactory to
Lender, such documents, and completion of such other matters, as Lender may reasonably deem
necessary or appropriate, including, without limitation:

(a) the perfection certificate of Borrower (in a form acceptable to Lender), together
with the duly executed original signature thereto;

(b) the representations and warranties in this Agreement shall be true, accurate, and
complete in all material respects on the date of the Term Loan; provided, however, that such materiality
qualifier shall not be applicable to any representations and warranties that already are qualified or
modified by materiality in the text thereof; and provided, further that those representations and warranties
expressly referring to a specific date shall be true, accurate and complete in all material respects as of
such date;

(¢) no Bvent of Default shall have occurred and be continuing or result from the
Term Loan; and

(d) in Lender’s reasonable discretion, there has not been any material impairment in
the general affairs, management, results of operation, financial condition or the prospect of repayment of
the Obligations, or any material adverse deviation by Borrower from the most recent business plan of
Borrower presented to and accepted by Lendet.

3.2 Procedures for Borrowing. Subject to the prior satisfaction of all other applicable
conditions to the making of any Term Loan set forth in this Agreement, to obtain a Term Loan, Borrower
shall notify Lender (which notice shall be irrevocable) by electronic mail, facsimile, or telephone by
12:00 p.m. Pacific time at least five (5) Business Days prior to the date the Term Loan is to be made,
Together with any such notification, Borrower shall deliver to Lender by electronic mail or facsimile a

D
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completed Payment/Advance Form executed by a Responsible Officer or his or her designee in a form
reasonably acceptable to Lender.

4 CREATION OF SECURITY INTEREST

4.1 Grant of Security Interest. Borrower hereby grants Lender, to secure the payment and
performance in full of all of the Obligations, a continuing security interest in, and pledges to Lender, the
Collateral, wherever located, whether now owned or hereafter acquired or arising, and all proceeds and
products thereof,

4.2 Priority of Security Interest. Borrower represents, warrants, and covenants that the
security interest granted herein is and shall at all times continue to be a first priority perfected security
interest in the Collateral. If Borrower shall acquire a commercial tort claim, Borrower shall promptly
notify Lender in a writing signed by Borrower of the general details thereof and grant to Lender in such
writing a security interest therein and in the proceeds thereof, all upon the terms of this Agreement, with
such writing to be in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to Lender. If this Agreement is
terminated, Lender’s Lien in the Collateral shall continue until the Obligations are repaid in full in cash,
Upon payment in full in cash of the Obligations and at such time as Lender’s obligation to make Term
Loan has terminated, Lender shall, at Borrower’s sole cost and expense, release its Liens in the Collateral
and all rights therein shall revert to Borrower.

4.3 Authorization to File Financing Statements, Borrower hereby authorizes Lender to
file financing statements, without notice to Borrower, with all appropriate jurisdictions to perfect or
protect Lender’s interest or rights hereunder, including a notice that any disposition of the Collateral, by
either Borrower or any other Person, shall be deemed to violate the rights of Lender under the Code.
Sueh financing statements shall describe the Collateral using the description set forth on Exhibit A.

5 REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

Borrower represents and warrants as follows:

5.1 Due Organization, Authorization; Power and Authority. Borrower is duly existing as
a corporation in the state of Washington and is qualified and licensed to do business and is in good
standing in any jurisdiction in which the conduct of its business or its ownership of property requires that
it be qualified except where the failure to do so could not reasonably be expected to have a material
adverse effect on Borrower’s business. The execution, delivery and performance by Borrower of this
Agreement has been duly authorized, and does not (i) conflict with any of Borrower’s organizational
documents, (ii) contravene, conflict with, constitute a default under or violate any material Requirement
of Law, (iii) contravene, conflict or violate any applicable order, writ, judgment, injunction, decree,
determination or award of any Governmental Authority by which Borrower or any of its property or
assets may be bound or affected, (iv) require any action by, filing, registration, or qualification with, or
Governmental Approval from, any Governmental Authority, or (v) constitute an event of default under
any material agreement by which Borrower is bound. Borrower is not in default under any agreement to
which it is a party or by which it is bound in which the default could reasonably be expected to have a
material adverse effect on Borrower’s business,

5.2 Collateral. Borrower has good title to, has rights in, and the power to transfer each item
of the Collateral upon which it purports to grant a Lien hereunder, free and clear of any and all Liens
except Permitted Liens. The Collateral is not in the possession of any third party bailee (such as a
warehouse); provided that, Borrower may deliver work-in-process inventory to subcontractors for
finishing work in the ordinary course of business. None of the components of the Collateral shall be

3.
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maintained at locations; provided that, Botrower may deliver work-in-process inventory to subcontractors
for finishing work in the ordinary course of business. Borrower is the sole owner of the Intellectual
Property which it owns or purports to own except for (a) non-exclusive licenses granted fo its customers
in the ordinary course of business and (b) over-the-counter software that is commercially available to the
public. Each Patent which it owns or purports to own and which is matetial to Borrower’s business is
valid and enforceable, and no part of the Intellectual Property which Borrower owns or purports to own
and which is material to Borrower's business has been judged invalid or unenforceable, in whole or in
patt. To the best of Borrowet’s knowledge, no claim bas been made that any part of the Intellectual
Property violates the rights of any third party except to the extent such claim would not reasonably be
expected to have a material adverse effect on Borrower’s business.

53 Litigation. There are no actions or proceedings pending or, to the knowledge of the
Responsible Officers, threatened by or against Borrower, except for the Bankruptey Process.

54 Tax Returns and Payments. Borrower has timely filed all required tax returns and
reports, and Borrower has timely paid all foreign, federal, state and local taxes, assessments, deposits and
contributions owed by Borrower. Borrower may defer payment of any contested taxes, provided that
Borrower (a) in good faith contests its obligation to pay the taxes by appropriate proceedings promptly
and diligently instituted and conducted, (b) notifies Lender in writing of the commencement of, and any
material development in, the proceedings, (c) posts bonds or takes any other steps required to prevent the
governmental authority levying such contested taxes from obtaining a Lien upon any of the Collateral that
is other than a “Permitted Lien”. Botrower is unaware of any claims or adjustments proposed for any of
Borrower's ptior tax years which could result in additional taxes becoming due and payable by Borrower.

55  Use of Proceeds. Borrower shall use the proceeds of the Term Loan solely as working
capital and to fund the Bankruptcy Process.

6 AFFIRMATIVE COVENANTS

Borrower shall do all of the following, for so long as there are outstanding any Obligations:
6.1 Government Compliance.

(a) Maintain its legal existence in its jurisdiction of formation and maintain
qualification in each jurisdiction in which the failure to so qualify would reasonably be expected to have a
material adverse effect on Borrower’s business or operations. Borrower shall comply with all laws,
ordinances and regulations to which it is subject, noncompliance with which could have a material
adverse effect on Borrower’s business.

(b) Obtain all of the Governmental Approvals necessary for the performance by
Borrower of its obligations under this Agreement and the grant of a security interest to Lender in all of its
property. Borrower shall promptly provide copies of any such obtained Governmental Approvals to
Lender.

6.2 Financial Statements, Reports, Certificates. Deliver to Lender:

(a) Monthly Financial Statements. As soon as available, but no later than thirty (30)
days after the last day of each month, a company prepared consolidated balance sheet, income statement
and statement of cash flows covering Borrower’s consolidated operations for such month certified by a
Responsible Officer and in a form acceptable to Lender;

4
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b) Legal Action Notice. A prompt report of any legal actions pending or threatened
in writing against Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries that could result in damages or costs to Borrower or
any of its Subsidiaries of, individually or in the aggregate, $100,000 or more, including but not limited to
the Canadian Bankruptcy Process;

(c) Intellectual Property Notice. Prompt written notice of (i) any material change in
the composition of the Intellectual Property, (ii) the registration of any copyright, including any
subsequent ownership right of Borrower in or to any copyright, patent or trademark not previously
disclosed in writing to Lender, and (iii) Borrower’s knowledge of an event that could reasonably be
expected to materially and adversely affect the value of the Intellectual Property;

(d) Budgets and Projections. Prior to the end of each fiscal year of Borrower, deliver
to Lender (A) annual operating budgets (including income statements, balance sheets and cash flow
statements, by month) for the upcoming fiscal year of Borrower, and (B) annual financial projections for
the upcoming fiscal year (on a quarterly basis), as approved by Borrower’s board of directors, together
with any related business forecasts used in the preparation of such annual financial projections; and

(e) Other Financial Information. Other financial information reasonably requested
by Lender.

6.3 Inventory; Returns. Keep all Inventory in good and marketable condition, free from
material defects. Returns and allowances between Borrower and its Account Debtors shall follow
Borrower’s customary practices as they exist at the Effective Date. Borrower must promptly notify
Lender of all returns, recoveries, disputes and claims that involve more than One Hundred Thousand
Dollars ($100,000),

6.4 Taxes. Timely file, and require each of its Subsidiaries to timely file, all required tax
returns and reports and timely pay, and require each of its Subsidiaries to timely pay, all foreign, federal,
state and local taxes, assessments, deposits and contributions owed by Borrower, and shall deliver to
Lender, on demand, appropriate certificates attesting to such payments.

6.5 Insurance, Keep its business and the Collateral insured for risks and in amounts
standard for companies in Borrower’s industry and location and as Lender may reasonably request.
Insurance policies shall be in a form, with companies, and in amounts that are satisfactory to Lender.

6.6 Protection of Intellectual Property Rights. (i) Protect, defend and maintain the validity
and enforceability of its Intellectual Property; (i) promptly advise Lender in writing of material
infringements of its Intellectual Property; and (iii) not allow any Intellectual Property material to
Botrower’s business to be abandoned, forfeited or dedicated to the public without Lender’s written
consent, If Borrower (i) obtains any patent, registered trademark or servicemark, registered copyright,
registered mask work, or any pending application for any of the foregoing, whether as owner, licensee or
otherwise, or (ii) applies for any patent or the registration of any trademark, servicemark or copyright,
then Borrower shall immediately provide written notice thereof to Lender. Borrower shall promptly
provide to Lender copies of all applications that it files for patents or for the registration of trademarks,
servicemarks, copyrights or mask works,

6.7 Litigation Cooperation. From the date hereof and continuing through the termination of
this Agreement, make available to Lender, without expense to Lender, Borrower and its officers,
employees and agents and Borrower’s books and records, to the extent that Lender may deem them
reasonably necessary to prosecute or defend any third-party suit or proceeding instituted by or against
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Lender with respect to any Collateral or relating to Borrower, including but not limited to the Bankruptcy
Process.

6.8 Access to Collateral; Books and Records. Allow Lender, or its agents, at reasonable
times, on one (1) Business Day’s notice (provided no notice is required if an Bvent of Default has
oceurred and is continuing), to inspect the Collateral and audit and copy Borrower’s books and records.

6.9 Further Assurances. Execute any further instruments and take further action as Lender
reasonably requests to perfect or continue Lender’s Lien in the Collateral or to effect the purposes of this
Agreement, Deliver to Lender, within five (5) days after the same are sent or received, copies of all
correspondence, reports, documents and other filings with any Governmental Authority regarding
compliance with or maintenance of Governmental Approvals or Requirements of Law or that could
reasonably be expected to have a material effect on any of the Governmental Approvals or otherwise on
the operations of Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries.

7 NEGATIVE COVENANTS

Borrower shall not do any of the following without Lender’s prior written consent, for so long as
there are outstanding any Obligations:

7.1 Dispositions. Convey, sell, lease, transfer, assign, or otherwise dispose of (collectively,
“Transfer”) all or any part of its business or property, except for Transfers (a) of Inventory in the
ordinary course of business; (b) of worn-out or obsolete Equipment; and (¢) of non-exclusive licenses for
the use of the property of Borrower in the ordinary course of business.

7.2 Changes in Business, Ownership, or Business Locations. (a) Engage in any business
other than the businesses currently engaged in by Botrower or reasonably related thereto; (b) liquidate or
dissolve; or (c) enter into any transaction or series of related transactions in which the stockholders of
Borrower who were not stockholders immediately prior to the first such transaction own more than 50%
of the voting stock of Borrower immediately after giving effect to such transaction or related series of
such transactions (other than by the sale of Borrower’s equity securities in a public offering or to venture
capital investors so long as Borrower identifies to Lender the venture capital investors prior to the closing
of the transaction and provides to Lender a description of the material terms of the transaction).

Borrower shall not, without at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Lender: (1) add
any new offices or business locations, including warehouses (unless such new offices or business
locations contain less than Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000) in Borrower’s assets or property) or
deliver any portion of the Collateral valued, individually or in the aggregate, in excess of Fifty Thousand
Dollars ($50,000) to a bailee, (2) change its jurisdiction of organization, (3) change its organizational
structure or type, (4) change its legal name, or (5) change any organizational number (if any) assigned by
its jurisdiction of organization. If Borrower intends to deliver any portion of the Collateral valued,
individually or in the aggregate, in excess of Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000) to a bailee, Borrower will
first receive the written consent of Lender, and such bailee shall execute and deliver a bailee agreement in
form and substance satisfactory to Lender in its sole discretion.

7.3 Mergers or Acquisitions, Merge or consolidate with any other Person, or acquire all or
substantially all of the capital stock or property of another Person (including, without limitation, by the
formation of any subsidiary),

7.4 Indebtedness. Create, incur, assume, or be liable for any Indebtedness, other than
Permitted Indebtedness.
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7.5 Encumbrance, Create, incur, allow, or suffer any Lien on any of its property, or assign
or convey any right to receive income, including the sale of any Accounts, except for Permitted Liens,
permit any Collateral not to be subject to the first priority security interest granted herein, or enter into
any agreement, document, instrument or other arrangement (except with or in favor of Lender) with any
Person which directly or indirectly prohibits or has the effect of prohibiting Borrower from assigning,
mortgaging, pledging, granting a sccurity interest in or upom, or encumbering any of Bortower’s
Intellectual Property.

7.6 Distributions; Investments. (a) Pay any dividends or make any distribution or payment
or redeem, retire or purchase any capital stock,

7.7 Transactions with Affiliates. Directly or indirectly enter into or permit to exist any
material transaction with any Affiliate of Borrower.

8 EVENTS OF DEFAULT

Any one of the following shall constitute an event of default (an “Event of Default’”) under this
Agreement:

8.1 Payment Default. Borrower fails to (a) make any payment of principal or interest on
any Term Lean on its due date, or (b) pay any other Obligations within three (3) Business Days after such
Obligations are due and payable;

8.2 Covenant Default.

(a) Borrower fails or neglects to perform any its obligations or violates any covenant
under this Agreement; or

(b) Borrower fails or neglects to perform, keep, or observe any other term, provision,
condition, covenant or agreement contained in this Agreement, and as to any default (other than those
specified in this Section 8) under such other term, provision, condition, covenant or agreement that can be
cured, has failed to cure the default within ten (10) days after the occurrence thereof. Cure periods
provided under this section shall not apply, among other things, to financial covenants or any other
covenants set forth in clause (a) above;

8.3 Material Adverse Change. A Material Adverse Change occurs,

8.4 Attachment; Levy; Restraint on Business, A notice of lien or levy is filed against any
of Borrower’s assets by any government agency, and the same is not, within ten (10) days after the
occurrence thereof, discharged or stayed (whether through the posting of a bond or otherwise);

8.5 Insolvency. The Lender’s notification that the Bankruptey Process is not, in the Lender’s
discretion, progressing satisfactorily;

8.6 Judgments, Other than arising from the Bankruptey Process, one or more final
judgments, orders, or decrees for the payment of money shall be rendered against Borrower and the same
are not, within ten (10) days after the entry thereof, discharged or execution thereof stayed or bonded
pending appeal, or such judgments are not discharged prior to the expiration of any such stay; or

8.7 Misrepresentations.  Borrower or any Person acting for Borrower makes any

representation, warranty, or other statement now or later in this Agreement or in any writing delivered to

-7
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Lender or to induce Lender to enter this Agreement, and such representation, warranty, or other statement
is incorrect in any material respect when made.

9 LENDER’S RIGHTS AND REMEDIES

9.1 Rights and Remedies. If an Bvent of Default has occurred and is continuing, Lender
may, without notice or demand, do any or all of the following:

(a) declare all Obligations immediately due and payable (but if an Event of Default
deseribed in Section 8.5 occurs all Obligations are immediately due and payable without any action by
Lender);

(b) verify the amount of, demand payment of and performance under, and collect any
Accounts and General Intangibles, settle or adjust disputes and claims directly with Account Debtors for
amounts on terms and in any order that Lender considers advisable, and notify any Person owing
Borrower money of Lender’s security interest in such funds;

©) make any payments and do any acts it considers necessary or reasonable to
protect the Collateral and/or its security interest in the Collateral. Borrower shall assemble the Collateral
if Lender requests and make it available as Lender designates. Lender may enter premises where the
Collateral is located, take and maintain possession of any part of the Collateral, and pay, purchase,
contest, or compromise any Lien which appears to be prior or superior to its security interest and pay all
expenses incurred. Borrower grants Lender a license to enter and occupy any of its premises, without
charge, to exercise any of Lender’s rights or remedies;

(@) ship, reclaim, recover, store, finish, maintain, repair, prepare for sale, advertise
for sale, and sell the Collateral. Lender is hereby granted a non-exclusive, royalty-free license or other
right to use, without charge, Borrower’s labels, Patents, Copyrights, mask works, rights of use of any
name, trade secrets, trade names, Trademarks, and advertising matter, or any similar property as it
pertains to the Collateral, in completing production of, advertising for sale, and selling any Collateral and,
in connection with Lender’s exercise of its rights under this Section, Borrower’s rights under all licenses
and all franchise agreements inure to Lender’s benefit;

(e) demand and receive possession of Borrower’s books and records; and

® exercise all rights and remedies available to Lender under this Agreement or at
law ot equity, including all remedies provided under the Code (including disposal of the Collateral
pursuant to the terms thereof).

9.2 Power of Attorney. Borrower hereby irrevocably appoints Lender as its lawful attorney-
in-fact, exercisable upon the occurrence and during the continuance of an Event of Default, to: (a)
endorse Borrower’s name on any checks or other forms of payment or security; (b) sign Borrower’s name
on any invoice or bill of lading for any Account or drafts against Account Debtors; (c) settle and adjust
disputes and claims about the Accounts directly with Account Debtors, for amounts and on terms Lender
determines reasonable; (d) make, settle, and adjust all claims under Borrower’s insurance policies; (e)
pay, contest or settle any Lien, charge, encumbrance, security interest, and adverse claim in or to the
Collateral, or any judgment based thereon, or otherwise take any action to terminate or discharge the
same; and () transfer the Collateral into the name of Lender or a third party as the Code permits.
Borrower hereby appoints Lender as its lawful attorney-in-fact to sign Borrower’s name on any
documents necessary to perfect or continue the perfection of Lender’s security interest in the Collateral
regardless of whether an Event of Default has occurred until all Obligations have been satisfied in full and

-8
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Lender is under no further obligation to make Term Loan hereunder, Lender’s foregoing appointment as
Bomrower’s atforney in fact, and all of Lender’s rights and powers, coupled with an interest, are
irrevocable until all Obligations have been fully repaid and performed and Lender’s obligation to provide
Term Loan terminates,

9.3 Protective Payments. If Borrower fails to pay any insurance premium or fails to pay
any other amount which Borrower is obligated to pay under this Agreement, Lender may obtain such
insurance or make such payment, and all amounts so paid by Lender are immediately due and payable by
Borrower, bearing interest at the then highest rate applicable to the Obligations, and secured by the
Collateral. Lender will make reasonable efforts to provide Borrower with notice of Lender obtaining such
insurance at the time it is obtained or within a reasonable time thereafter, No payments by Lender are
deemed an agreement to make similar payments in the future or Lender’s waiver of any Event of Default.

9.4 Application of Payments and Proceeds Upon Default. If an Event of Default has
occurred and is continuing, Lender may apply any funds in its possession, whether from Borrower
account balances, payments, proceeds realized as the result of any collection of Accounts or other
disposition of the Collateral, or otherwise, to the Qbligations in such order as Lender shall determine in its
sole discretion. Any surplus shall be paid to Borrower or other Persons legally entitled thereto; Borrower
shall remain liable to Lender for any deficiency. If Lender, in its good faith business judgment, directly
or indirectly enters into a deferred payment or other credit transaction with any purchaser at any sale of
Collateral, Lender shall have the option, exercisable at any time, of either reducing the Obligations by the
principal amount of the purchase price or deferring the reduction of the Obligations until the actual receipt
by Lender of cash therefor.

9.5 Lender’s Liability for Collateral. So long as Lender complies with reasonable lending
practices regarding the safekeeping of the Collateral in the possession or under the control of Lender,
Lender shall not be liable or responsible for: (a) the safekeeping of the Collateral; (b) any loss or damage
to the Collateral; (c) any diminution in the value of the Collateral; or (d) any act or default of any carrier,
warehouseman, bailee, or other Person, Borrower bears all risk of loss, damage or destruction of the
Collateral,

9.6 No Waiver; Remedies Cumulative. Lender’s failure, at any time or times, to require
strict performance by Borrower of any provision of this Agreement shall not waive, affect, or diminish
any right of Lender thereafter to demand strict performance and compliance herewith or therewith. No
waiver hereunder shall be effective unless signed by the party granting the waiver and then is only
effective for the specific instance and purpose for which it is given, Lender’s rights and remedies under
this Agreement re cumulative, Lender has all rights and remedies provided under the Code, by law, or in
equity, Lender’s exercise of one right or remedy is not an election and shall not preclude Lender from
exercising any other remedy under this Agreement or other remedy available at law or in equity, and
Lender’s waiver of any Event of Default is not a continuing waiver. Lender’s delay in exercising any
remedy is not a waiver, election, or acquiescence,

9.7 Demand Waiver, Borrower waives demand, notice of default or dishonor, notice of
payment and nonpayment, notice of any default, nonpayment at maturity, release, compromise,
settlement, extension, or renewal of accounts, documents, instruments, chattel paper, and guarantees held
by Lender on which Borrower is liable.

10 NOTICES

All notices, consents, requests, approvals, demands, or other communication by any party to this
Agreement must be in writing and shall be deemed to have been validly served, given, or delivered: (a)

O
{03129370,D0C:3 }

-

2
[



upon the earlier of actual receipt and three (3) Business Days after deposit in the mail, first class,
registered or certified mail return receipt requested, with proper postage prepaid; (b) upon transmission,
when sent by electronic mail or facsimile transmission; (c) one (1) Business Day after deposit with a
reputable overnight courier with all charges prepaid; or (d) when delivered, if hand-delivered by
messenger, all of which shall be addressed to the party to be notified and sent to the address, facsimile
number, or email address indicated below. Lender or Borrower may change its mailing or electronic mail
address or facsimile number by giving the other party written notice thereof in accordance with the terms
of this Section 10.

If to Borrower: MicroPlanet, Inc.
26285 Twelve Trees Lane NW, Suite 161
Poulsbo, WA 98370
Attn: Wolfgang Struss

If to Lender: Emerald Ventures Inc.
60 Heln Lane
Port Ludlow, WA 98365
Attn: Wayne Smith

11 CHOICE OF LAW, VENUE, JURY TRIAL WAIVER, AND JUDICIAL

Regardless of any pending bankruptey process (including the Bankruptcy Process), Washington
law governs this Agreement and any security provided without regard to principles of conflicts of law.
Except to the extent that Lender may expressly consent to jurisdiction of the Canadian Bankruptcy
Process, Borrower and Lender each submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the State and Federal courts in
King County, Washington; provided, however, that nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to operate
to preclude Lender from bringing suit or taking other legal action in any other jurisdiction to realize on
the Collateral or any other security for the Obligations, or to enforce a judgment or other court order in
favor of Lender. Bortower expressly submits and consents in advance to such jurisdiction in any action
or suit commenced in any such court, and Borrower hereby waives any objection that it may have based
upon lack of personal jurisdiction, improper venue, or forum non conveniens and hereby consents to the
granting of such legal or equitable relief as is deemed appropriate by such court. Borrower hereby waives
personal service of the summons, complaints, and other process issued in such action or suit and agrees
that service of such summons, complaints, and other process may be made by registered or certified mail
addressed to Borrower at the address set forth in, or subsequently provided by Borrower in accordance
with, Section 10 of this Agreement and that service so made shall be deemed completed upon the earlier
to occur of Borrower’s actual receipt thereof or three (3) days after deposit in the mails, proper postage
prepaid.

TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, BORROWER AND
LENDER EACH WAIVE THEIR RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL OF ANY CLAIM OR CAUSE OF
ACTION ARISING OUT OF OR BASED UPON THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY
CONTEMPLATED TRANSACTION, INCLUDING CONTRACT, TORT, BREACH OF DUTY
AND ALL OTHER CLAIMS. THIS WAIVER IS A MATERIAL INDUCEMENT FOR BOTH
PARTIES TO ENTER INTO THIS AGREEMENT, EACH PARTY HAS REVIEWED THIS
WAIVER WITH ITS COUNSEL,

WITHOUT INTENDING IN ANY WAY TO LIMIT THE PARTIES’ AGREEMENT TO
WAIVE THEIR RESPECTIVE RIGHT TO A TRIAL BY JURY, if the above waiver of the right to a

-10-
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trial by jury is not enforceable, the parties hereto agree that any and all disputes or controversies of any
nature between them arising at any time shall be decided by a reference to a private judge, mutually
selected by the parties (or, if they cannot agree, by the Presiding Judge of the King County, Washington
Superior Court) appointed in accordance with the Washington Rules of Civil Procedure (or pursuant to
comparable provisions of federal law if the dispute falls within the exclusive jurisdiction of the federal
courts), sitting without a jury, in King County, Washington; and the parties hereby submit to the
jurisdiction of such court. The reference proceedings shall be conducted pursuvant to and in accordance
with the provisions of Washington Rules of Civil Procedure. The private judge shall have the power,
among others, to grant provisional relief, including without limitation, entering temporary restraining
orders, issuing preliminary and permanent injunctions and appointing receivers. All such proceedings
shall be closed to the public and confidential and all records relating thereto shall be permanently sealed.
If during the course of any dispute, a party desires to seek provisional relief, but a judge has not been
appointed at that point pursuant to the judicial reference procedures, then such party may apply to the
King County, Washington Superior Court for such relief, The proceeding before the private judge shall
be conducted in the same manner as it would be before a court under the rules of evidence applicable to
judicial proceedings. The parties shall be entitled to discovery which shall be conducted in the same
manner as it would be before a court under the rules of discovery applicable to judicial proceedings. The
private judge shall oversee discovery and may enforce all discovery rules and orders applicable to judicial
proceedings in the same manner as a trial court judge. The parties agree that the selected or appointed
private judge shall have the power to decide all issues in the action or proceeding, whether of fact or of
law, and shall report a statement of decision thereon, Nothing in this paragraph shall limit the right of any
party at any time to exercise self-help remedies, foreclose against collateral, or obtain provisional
remedies, The private judge shall also determine all issues relating to the applicability, interpretation, and
enforceability of this paragraph.

12 GENERAL PROVISIONS

12.1  Successors and Assigns. This Agreement binds and is for the benefit of the successors
and permitted assigns of each party. Borrower may not assign this Agreement or any rights or obligations
under it without Lender’s prior written consent (which may be granted or withheld in Lender’s
discretion), Lender has the right, without the consent of or notice to Borrower, to sell, transfer, assign,
negotiate, or grant participation in all or any part of, or any interest in, Lender’s obligations, rights, and
benefits under this Agreement.

122  Indemnification. Borrower agrees to indemnify, defend and hold Lender and its
directors, officers, employees, agents, attorneys, or any other Person affiliated with or representing
Lender (each, an “Indemnified Person”) harmless against: (a)all obligations, demands, claims, and
liabilities (collectively, “Claims™) claimed or asserted by any other party in comnection with the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement; and (b) all losses or expenses in any way suffered, incurred,
or paid by such Indemnified Person as a result of, following from, consequential to, or arising from
transactions between Lender and Borrower (inchuding reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses), except
for Claims and/or losses directly caused by such Indemnified Person’s gross negligence or willful
miscondugt,

12.3  Time of Essence. Time is of the essence for the performance of all Obligations in this
Agreement,

12.4  Severability of Provisions. Each provision of this Agreement is severable from every
other provision in determining the enforceability of any provision,
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12.5  Amendments in Writing; Waiver; Integration, No purported amendment or
modification of this Agreement, or waiver, discharge or termination of any obligation under this
Agreement, shall be enforceable or admissible unless, and only to the extent, expressly set forth in a
writing signed by the party against which enforcement or admission is sought, Without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, no oral promise or statement, nor any action, inaction, delay, failure to require
performance or course of conduct shall operate as, or evidence, an amendment, supplement or waiver or
have any other effect on this Agreement. Any waiver granted shall be limited to the specific circumstance
expressly described in it, and shall not apply to any subsequent or other circumstance, whether similar or
dissimilar, or give rise to, or evidence, any obligation or commitment to grant any further waiver, This
Agreement represents the entire agreement about this subject matter and supersedes prior negotiations or
agteements.

12.6  Survival. All covenants, representations and warranties made in this Agreement
continue in full force until this Agreement has terminated pursuant to its terms and all Obligations (other
than inchoate indemnity obligations and any other obligations which, by their terms, are to survive the
termination of this Agreement) have been paid in full and satisfied. The obligation of Borrower in Section
12.2 to indemnify the Indemnified Persons shall survive until all statutes of limitation with respect to the
Claims, losses and expenses for which indemnity is given shall have run,

127  Attorneys’ Fees, Costs and Expenses. In any action or proceeding between Botrower
and Lender arising out of or relating to this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its
reasonable attorneys’ fees and other costs and expenses incurred, in addition to any other relief to which it
may be entitled.

12.8  Construction of Agreement. The parties mutually acknowledge that both they and their
attorneys have participated in the preparation and negotiation of this Agreement. In cases of uncertainty
this Agreement shall be construed without regard to which of the parties caused the uncertainty to exist.

12.9 Relationship. The relationship of the parties to this Agreement is determined solely by
the provisions of this Agreement. The parties do not intend to create any agency, partnership, joint
venture, trust, fiduciary or other relationship with duties or incidents different from those of parties to an
arm’s-length contract. '

12,10 Third Parties. Nothing in this Agreement, whether express or implied, is intended to:
(a) confer any benefits, rights or remedies under or by reason of this Agreement on any persons other than
the express parties to it and their respective permitted successors and assigns; (b) relieve or discharge the
obligation or liability of any person not an express party to this Agreement; or (c) give any person not an
express party to this Agreement any right of subrogation or action against any party to this Agreement.

13 DEFINITIONS

13.1  Definitions. As used in this Agreement, the word “shall” is mandatory, the word “may”
is permissive, the word “or” is not exclusive, the words “includes” and “including” are not limiting, the
singular includes the plural, and numbers denoting amounts that are set off in brackets are negative. As
used in this Agreement, the following capitalized terms have the following meanings:

“Affiliate” is, with respect to any Person, each other Person that owns or controls directly or
indirectly the Person, any Person that controls or is controlled by or is under common control with the
Person, and each of that Person’s senior executive officers, directors, partners and, for any Person that is a
limited liability company, that Person’s managers and members.

-12-
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“Business Day” is any day that is not a Saturday or Sunday.

“Code” is the Uniform Commercial Code, as the same may, from time to time, be enacted and in
effect in the State of Washington; provided, that, to the extent that the Code is used to define any term
herein and such term is defined differently in different Articles or Divisions of the Code, the definition of
such term contained in Article or Division 9 shall govern; provided further, that in the event that, by
reason of mandatory provisions of law, any or all of the attachment, perfection, or priority of, or remedies
with respect to, Lender’s Lien on any Collateral is governed by the Uniform Commercial Code in effect
in a jurisdiction other than the State of Washington, the term “Code” shall mean the Uniform Commercial
Code as enacted and in effect in such other jurisdiction solely for purposes of the provisions thereof
relating to such attachment, perfection, priority, or remedies and for purposes of definitions relating to
such provisions.

“Collateral” is any and all properties, rights and assets of Borrower described on Exhibit A.

“Contingent Obligation” is, for any Person, any direct or indirect liability, contingent or not, of
that Person for (a) any indebtedness, lease, dividend, letter of credit or other obligation of another such as
an obligation, in each case, directly or indirectly guaranteed, endorsed, co-made, discounted ot sold with
recourse by that Person, or for which that Person is directly or indirectly liable; (b) any obligations for
undrawn letters of credit for the account of that Person; and (c) all obligations from any interest rate,
currency or commodity swap agreement, interest rate cap or collar agreement, or other agreement or
arrangement designated to protect a Person against fluctuation in interest rates, currency exchange rates or
commodity prices; but “Contingent Obligation” does not include endorsements in the ordinary course of
business. The amount of a Contingent Obligation is the stated or determined amount of the primary
obligation for which the Contingent Obligation is made or, if not determinable, the maximum reasonably
anticipated liability for it determined by the Person in good faith; but the amount may not exceed the
maximum of the obligations under any guarantee or other support arrangement.

“Copyrights” are any and all copyright rights, copyright applications, copyright registrations and
like protections in each work or authorship and derivative work thereof, whether published or
unpublished and whether or not the same also constitutes a trade secret.

“GAAP” is generally accepted accounting principles set forth in the opinions and
pronouncenients of the Accounting Principles Board of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and statements and pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board or in such
other statements by such other Person as may be approved by a significant segment of the accounting
profession, which are applicable to the circumstances as of the date of determination,

“Governmental Approval” is any consent, authorization, approval, order, license, franchise,
permit, certificate, acereditation, registration, filing or notice, of, issued by, from or to, or other act by or
in respect of, any Governmental Authority.

“Governmental Authority” {s any nation or government, any state or other political subdivision
thereof, any agency, authority, instrumentality, regulatory body, court, central Lender or other entity
exercising executive, legislative, judicial, taxing, regulatory or administrative functions of or pertaining to
government, any securities exchange and any self-regulatory organization,

“Indebtedness” is (a) indebtedness for borrowed money or the deferred price of property or
services, such as reimbursement and other obligations for surety bonds and letters of credit, (b)
obligations evidenced by notes, bonds, debentures or similar instruments, (c) capital lease obligations, and
(d) Contingent Obligations.

13-
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“Insolvency Proceeding” is any proceeding by or against any Person under the United States
Bankruptcy Code, or any other bankruptcy or insolvency law, including in Canada, also including
assignments for the benefit of creditors, compositions, extensions generally with its creditors, or
proceedings seeking reorganization, arrangement, or other relief,

“Intellectual Property” means all of Borrower’s right, title, and interest in and to the following:
(a) its Copyrights, Trademarks and Patents;

(b) any and all trade secrets and trade secret rights, including, without limitation, any rights
to unpatented inventions, know-how, operating manuals;

() any and all source code;
() any and all design rights which may be available to a Borrower;

(&) any and all claims for damages by way of past, present and future infringement of any of
the foregoing, with the right, but not the obligation, to sue for and collect such damages for said use or
infringement of the Intellectual Property rights identified above; and

® all amendments, renewals and extensions of any of the Copyrights, Trademarks or
Patents.

“Lender Expenses” are all audit fees and expenses, costs, and expenses (including reasonable
attorneys’ fees and expenses) for preparing, amending, negotiating, administering, defending and
enforcing this Agreement (including, without limitation, those incurred in conmection with appeals or
Tnsolvency Proceedings) or otherwise incurred with respect to Borrower,

“f jen” is a claim, mortgage, deed of trust, levy, charge, pledge, security interest or other
encumbrance of any kind, whether voluntarily incurred or arising by operation of law or otherwise against
any property. :

“Material Adverse Change” is (a) a material impairment in the perfection or priority of
Lender’s Lien in the Collateral ot in the value of such Collateral; (b) a material adverse change in the
business, operations, or condition (financial or otherwise) of Borrower; ot (¢) a material impairment of
the prospect of repayment of any portion of the Obligations.

“Qbligations” are Borrower’s obligations to pay when due any debts, principal, interest, Lender
Expenses and other amounts Borrower owes Lender now or later, whether under this Agreement or
otherwise, including, without limitation, all obligations relating to letters of credit (including
reimbursement obligations for drawn and undrawn letters of credit), cash management services, and
foreign exchange contracts, if any, and including interest aceruing after Insolvency Proceedings begin and
debts, liabilities, or obligations of Borrower assigned to Lender, and to perform Borrower’s duties under
this Agreement.

“Patents” means all patents, patent applications and like protections including without limitation
improvements, divisions, continuations, renewals, reissues, extensions and continuations-in-part of the
same.

“permitted Indebtedness” is Borrower’s Indebtedness to Lender under this Agreement and

unsecured Indebtedness to trade creditors incurred in the ordinary course of business.

-14-
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“Permitted Liens” are:

(&) Liens for taxes, fees, assessments or other government charges or levies, either (i) not due
and payable or (if) being contested in good faith and for which Borrower maintains adequate reserves on
its Books, provided that no notice of any such Lien has been filed or recorded under the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended, and the Treasury Regulations adopted thereunder;

(b) Liens of carriers, warehousemen, suppliers, or other Persons that are possessory in nature
ariging in the ordinary course of business so long as such Liens attach only to Inventory, securing
liabilities in the aggregate amount not to exceed Twenty Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000) and which are
not delinquent or remain payable without penalty or which are being contested in good faith and by
appropriate proceedings which proceedings have the effect of preventing the forfeiture or sale of the
property subject thereto; and

(c) Liens to secure payment of workers’ compensation, employment insurance, old-age
pensions, social security and other like obligations incurred in the ordinary course of business (other than
Liens imposed by ERISA).

“Person” is any individual, sole proprietorship, partnership, limited liability company, joint
venture, company, trust, unincorporated organization, association, corporation, institution, public benefit
corporation, firm, joint stock company, estate, entity or government agency.

“Requirement of Law” is as to any Person, the organizational or governing documents of such
Person, and any law (statutory or common), treaty, rule or regulation or determination of an arbitrator or a
court or other Governmental Authority, in each case applicable to or binding upon such Person or any of
its property or to which such Person or any of its property is subject.

“Responsible Officer” is any of the Chief Executive Officer, President, Chief Financial Officer
and Controller of Borrower.

“Securities Account” is any “securities account” as defined in the Code with such additions to
such term as may hercafter be made,

“Trademarks” means any trademark and servicemark rights, whether registered or not,
applications to register and registrations of the same and like protections, and the entire goodwill of the
business of Borrower connected with and symbolized by such trademarks,

(signature page follows)
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed as of

the Effective Date,

BORROWER:
MICROPLANET, INC.,

By \, ) X \Mﬁm/ @Im«(

Name: Wolfgang $ rubs 5
Title: CEO L
LENDER:

EMERALD VENTURES INC.

By: WW gm%

Name: Wayne S uth
Title: CEO

(Signature page to Loan and Security Agreement)
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EXHIBIT A ~ COLLATERAL DESCRIPTION

The Collateral consists of all of Borrower’s right, title and interest in and to the following personal
property:

All goods, Accounts (including receivables), Equipment, Inventory, Intellectual Property,
contract rights or rights to payment of money, leases, license agreements, franchise agreements, General
Intangibles, commercial tort claims, documents, instruments (including any promissory notes), chattel
paper (whether tangible or electronic), cash, deposit accounts, fixtures, letters of credit rights (whether or
not the letter of credit is evidenced by a writing), securities, and all other investment property, supporting
" obligations, and financial assets, whether now owned or hereafter acquired, wherever located; and

All Borrower’s books and records relating to the foregoing, and any and all claims, rights and
interests in any of the above and all substitutions for, additions, attachments, accessories, accessions and

improvements to and replacements, products, proceeds and insurance proceeds of any or all of the
foregoing.
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LOAN AND SECURITY AGREEMENT

THIS LOAN AND SECURITY AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”™) dated as of August 22,
2016 (the “Effective Date”) between EMERALD VENTURES INC,, a Washington corporation
(“Lender”), and MICROPLANET, INC., a Washington corporation (“Borrower”), provides the terms on
which Lender shall lend to Borrower and Borrower shall repay Lender, The parties agree as follows:

1 ACCOUNTING AND OTHER TERMS

Accounting terms not defined in this Agreement shall be construed following GAAP,
Calculations and determinations must be made following GAAP, Capitalized terms not otherwise defined
in this Agreement shall have the meanings set forth in Section 12, All other terms contained in this

Agreement, unless otherwise indicated, shall have the meaning provided by the Code to the extent such
terms are defined therein,

2 LOAN AND TERMS OF PAYMENT

2.1 Purpose of the Loan. Borrower agrees to use the proceeds of the Loan Amount (as
defined below) for the specific purpose of completing the manufacturing of products for which Borrower
has received that certain Purchase Order #4500669870 (the “Purchase Order”) and for such other
purposes as necessary to maintain operations of Borrower. The customer payment dates and amounts of
the Purchase Order are set forth below:

SAPN PO 4500669870 11/18/2016 $31,220,57
12/17/2016 $31,220,57
01/14/2017 $31,220,57
02/11/2017 $31,220.57
03/11/2017 $31,220.57
04/08/2017 $31,220.57
05/06/2017 $15.610.29
TOTAL $182,640.51

2.2 Promise to Pay. Borrower hereby unconditionally promises to pay Lender the Loan
Amount (as defined below), all accrued and unpaid interest thereon, and the Loan Fee (as defined below),
as and when due in accordance with this Agreement.

2.2.1 Loan.

(a) Availability. Within fifteen days following the Effective Date, Lender shall
make a loan to Borrower in the amount of $100,000 (the “Loan Amount”), subject to the satisfaction of
the terms and conditions of this Agreement,

(b) Repayment. In consideration for Lender’s loan of the Loan Amount to Borrower
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, Borrower hereby agrees to pay Lender the following amounts at
the following times: (i) the Loan Amount, which shall be paid on an installment basis from 80% of the
proceeds of each payment to Borrower with respect to the Purchase Order (as set forth above) not later
than five days following Borrower’s receipt of such payment under the Purchase Order until the Loan
Amount is paid in full, provided that, if not earlier paid in full, the Loan Amount shall be paid in full as of
the Maturity Date (as defined below); (ii) a loan fee of $15,000 (the “Loan Fee”), which shall be paid on
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the eatlier of May 15, 2017 or an Event of Default (the “Maturity Date”); plus (iii) interest on the
outstanding portion of the Loan Amount at a rate of 12% per annum (“Interest”).

©) Permitted Prepayment. Borrower shall have the option to prepay all, but not less
than all, of the outstanding Loan Amount, Loan Fee and Interest.

2.3 Payments; Application of Payments, All payments (including prepayments) to be
made by Borrower under this Agreement shall be made in immediately available funds in U.S. Dollars,
without setoff or counterclaim, before 12:00 p.m. Pacific time on the date when due. Payments of
principal and/or interest received after 12:00 p.m. Pacific time are considered received at the opening of
business on the next Business Day. When a payment is due on a day that is not a Business Day, the
payment shall be due the next Business Day, and additional fees or interest, as applicable, shall continue
to acerue until paid. Borrower shall have no right to specify the order or the accounts to which Lender
shall allocate or apply any payments required to be made by Borrower to Lender or otherwise received by
Lender under this Agreement when any such allocation or application is not specified elsewhere in this
Agreement.

3 CREATION OF SECURITY INTEREST

3.1 Grant of Security Interest. Borrower hereby grants Lender, to secure the payment and
performance in full of all of the Obligations, a continuing security interest in, and pledges to Lender, the
Collateral, wherever located, whether now owned or hereafter acquired or arising, and all proceeds and
products thereof. The foregoing security interest is subordinate to the security interest granted to Lender
pursuant to that certain Loan and Security Agreement dated as of June 1, 2016 between Lender and
Borrower (the “Prior Loan Agreement”),

3.2 Priority of Security Interest. Borrower trepresents, warrants, and covenants that the
security interest granted herein is and shall at all times continue to be a second priority perfected security
interest in the Collateral, subordinate only to the security interest granted pursuant to the Prior Loan
Agreement. If Borrower shall acquire a commaercial tort claim, Borrower shall promptly notify Lender in
a writing signed by Borrower of the general details thercof and grant to Lender in such writing a security
interest therein and in the proceeds thereof, all upon the terms of this Agreement, with such writing to be
in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to Lender. If this Agreement is terminated, Lender’s Lien
in the Collateral shall continue until the Obligations are repaid in full in cash. Upon payment in full in
cash of the Obligations, Lender shall, at Borrower’s sole cost and expense, release its Liens in the
Collateral and all rights therein shall revert to Botrower.

3.3 Authorization to File Financing Statements. Borrower hereby authorizes Lender to
file financing statements, without notice to Borrower, with all appropriate jurisdictions to perfect or
protect Lender’s interest or rights hereunder, including a notice that any disposition of the Collateral, by
cither Borrower or any other Person, shall be deemed to violate the rights of Lender under the Code,
Such financing statements shall describe the Collateral using the description set forth on Exhibit A.

4 REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

Borrower represents and wairants as follows:

4,1 Due Organization, Authorization; Power and Authority, Borrower is duly existing as
a corporation in the state of Washington and is qualified and licensed to do business and is in good
standing in any jurisdiction in which the conduct of its business or its ownership of property requires that
it be qualified except where the failure to do so could not reasonably be expected to have a material
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adverse effect on Borrower’s business. The execution, delivery and performance by Borrower of this
Agreement has been duly authorized, and does not (i) conflict with any of Borrower’s organizational
documents, (ii) contravene, conflict with, constitute a default under or violate any material Requirement
of Law, (iii) contravene, conflict or violate any applicable order, writ, judgment, injunction, decree,
determination or award of any Governmental Authority by which Borrower or any of its property or
assets may be bound or affected, (iv) require any action by, filing, registration, or qualification with, or
Governmental Approval from, any Governmental Authority, or (v) constitute an event of default under
any material agreement by which Borrower is bound. Borrower is not in default under any agreement to
which it is a party or by which it is bound in which the default could reasonably be expected to have a
material adverse effect on Borrower’s business,

4,2 Collateral. Borrower has good title to, has rights in, and the power to transfer the
Collateral upon which it purports to grant a Lien hereunder, free and clear of any and all Liens except
Permitted Liens, but subject to the senior security interest in the Collateral granted pursuant to the Prior
Loan Agreement.

4.3 Litigation. There are no actions or proceedings pending or, to the knowledge of the
Responsible Officers, threatened by or against Borrower, except for Borrower’s bankruptcy process under
the Companies Creditors’ Arrangement Act under Canadian law (the “Bankruptey Process”).

4.4 Tax Returns and Payments. Borrower has timely filed all required tax returns and
reports, and Borrower has timely paid all foreign, federal, state and local taxes, assessments, deposits and
contributions owed by Borrower. Borrower may defer payment of any contested taxes, provided that
Borrower (a) in good faith contests its obligation to pay the taxes by appropriate proceedings promptly
and diligently instituted and conducted, (b) notifies Lender in writing of the commencement of, and any
material development in, the proceedings, (¢) posts bonds or takes any other steps required to prevent the
governmental authority levying such contested taxes from obtaining a Lien upon any of the Collateral that
is other than a “Permitted Lien”. Borrower is unaware of any claims or adjustments proposed for any of
Borrower’s prior tax years which could result in additional taxes becoming due and payable by Borrower.

5 AFFIRMATIVE COVENANTS

Borrower shall do all of the following, for so long as there are outstanding any Obligations:
5.1 Government Compliance,

(a) Maintain its legal existence in its jurisdiction of formation and maintain
qualification in each jurisdiction in which the failure to so qualify would reasonably be expected to have a
material adverse effect on Borrower’s business or operations. Borrower shall comply with all laws,
ordinances and regulations to which it is subject, noncompliance with which could have a material
adverse effect on Borrower’s business.

(b) Obtain all of the Governmental Approvals necessary for the performance by
Borrower of its obligations under this Agreement and the grant of a security interest to Lender in all of its
property. Borrower shall promptly provide copies of any such obtained Governmental Approvals to

Lender,
5.2 Financial Statements, Reports, Certificates. Deliver to Lender:

(a) Monthly Financial Statements. As soon as available, but no later than thirty (30)
days after the last day of each month, a company prepared consolidated balance sheet, income statement
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and statement of cash flows covering Borrower’s consolidated operations for such month certified by a
Responsible Officer and in a form acceptable to Lender;

(b) Lepal Action Notice. A prompt report of any legal actions pending or threatened
in writing against Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries that could result in damages or costs to Borrower or
any of its Subsidiaries of, individually or in the aggregate, $100,000 or more, including but not limited to
the Bankruptcy Process; and

(c) Other Financial Information. Other financial information reasonably requested
by Lender.

5.3 Inventory; Returns. Keep all Inventory in good and marketable condition, free from
material defects. Returns and allowances between Borrower and its Account Debtors shall follow
Borrower’s customary practices as they exist at the Effective Date. Borrower must promptly notify
Lender of all returns, recoveries, disputes and claims that involve more than One Hundred Thousand
Dollars ($100,000).

5.4 Taxes. Timely file, and require each of its Subsidiaries to timely file, all required tax
returns and reports and timely pay, and require each of its Subsidiaries to timely pay, all foreign, federal,
state and local taxes, assessments, deposits and contributions owed by Borrower, and shall deliver to
Lender, on demand, appropriate certificates attesting to such payments.

5.5 Insurance, Keep its business and the Collateral insured for risks and in amounts
standard for companies in Borrower’s industry and location and as Lender may reasonably request.
Insurance policies shall be in a form, with companies, and in amounts that are satisfactory to Lender.

5.6 Protection of Intellectual Property Rights. (i) Protect, defend and maintain the validity
and enforceability of its Intellectual Property; (if) promptly advise Lender in writing of material
infringements of its Intellectual Property; and (iif) not allow any Intellectual Property material to
Rorrowet’s business to be abandoned, forfeited or dedicated to the public without Lender’s written
consent. If Borrower (i) obtains any patent, registered trademark or servicemark, registered copyright,
registered mask work, or any pending application for any of the foregoing, whether as owner, licensee or
otherwise, or (ii) applies for any patent or the registration of any trademark, servicemark or copyright,
then Borrower shall immediately provide written notice thereof to Lender. Borrower shall promptly
provide to Lender copies of all applications that it files for patents or for the registration of trademarks,
servicemarks, copyrights or mask works,

5.7 Litigation Cooperation. From the date hereof and continuing through the termination of
this Agreement, make available to Lender, without expense to Lender, Borrower and its officers,
employees and agents and Borrower’s books and records, to the extent that Lender may deem thermn
reasonably necessary to prosecute or defend any third-party suit or proceeding instituted by or against
Lender with respect to any Collateral or relating to Borrower, including but not limited to the Bankruptcy
Process.

5.8 Access to Collateral; Books and Records. Allow Lender, or its agents, at reasonable
times, on one (1) Business Day’s notice (provided no notice is required if an Event of Default has
occurred and is continuing), to inspect the Collateral and audit and copy Borrower’s books and records.

59  Further Assurances. Execute any further instruments and take further action as Lender
reasonably requests to perfect or continue Lender’s Lien in the Collateral or to effect the purposes of this
Agreement. Deliver to Lender, within five (5) days after the same are sent or received, copies of all
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correspondence, reports, documents and other filings with any Governmental Authority regarding
compliance with or maintenance of Governmental Approvals or Requirements of Law or that could
reasonably be expected to have a material effect on any of the Governmental Approvals or otherwise on
the operations of Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries,

6 NEGATIVE COVENANTS

Borrower shall not do any of the following without Lender’s prior written consent, for so long as
there are outstanding any Obligations:

6.1 Dispositions, Convey, sell, lease, transfer, assign, or otherwise dispose of (collectively,
“Transfer”) all or any part of its business or property, except for Transfers (a) of Inventory in the
ordinary course of business; (b) of worn-out or obsolete Equipment; and (¢) of non-exclusive licenses for
the use of the property of Borrower in the ordinary course of business.

6.2 Changes in Business, Ownership, or Business Locations. (a) Engage in any business
other than the businesses currently engaged in by Borrower or reasonably related thereto; (b) liquidate or
dissolve; or (¢) enter into any transaction or series of related transactions in which the stockholders of
Borrower who were not stockholders immediately prior to the first such transaction own more than 50%
of the voting stock of Borrower immediately after giving effect to such transaction or related series of
such transactions (other than by the sale of Borrower’s equity securities in a public offering or to venture
capital investors so long as Borrower identifies to Lender the venture capital investors prior to the closing
of the transaction and provides to Lender a description of the material terms of the transaction).

Borrower shall not, without at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Lender:
(1) add any new offices or business locations, including warehouses (unless such new offices or business
locations contain less than Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000) in Borrower’s assets or property) or
deliver any portion of the Collateral valued, individually or in the aggregate, in excess of Fifty Thousand
Dollars ($50,000) to a bailee, (2) change its jurisdiction of organization, (3) change its organizational
structure or type, (4) change its legal name, or (5) change any organizational number (if any) assigned by
its jurisdiction of organization. If Borrower intends to deliver any portion of the Collateral valed,
individually or in the aggregate, in excess of Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000) to a bailee, Borrower will
first receive the written consent of Lender, and such bailee shall execute and deliver a bailee agreement in
form and substance satisfactory to Lender in its sole discretion.

6.3 Mergers or Acquisitions. Merge or consolidate with any other Person, or acquire all or
substantially all of the capital stock or property of another Person (including, without limitation, by the
formation of any subsidiary).

6.4 Indebtedness. Create, incur, assume, or be liable for any Indebtedness, other than
Permitted Indebtedness.

6.5 Encumbrance, Create, incur, allow, or suffer any Lien on any of its property, or assign
or convey any right to receive income, including the sale of any Accounts, except for Permitted Liens,
permit any Collateral not to be subject to the first priority security interest granted herein, or enter into
any agreement, document, instrument or other arrangement (except with or in favor of Lender) with any
Person which directly or indirectly prohibits or has the effect of prohibiting Borrower from assigning,
mortgaging, pledging, granting a security interest in or upon, or encumbering any of Borrower’s
Intellectual Property.
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6.6 Distributions; Investments. (a) Pay any dividends or make any distribution or payment
or redeem, retire or purchase any capital stock.

677  Transactions with Affiliates, Directly or indirectly enter into or permit to exist any
material transaction with any Affiliate of Borrower.

7 EVENTS OF DEFAULT

Any one of the following shall constitute an event of default (an “Event of Default”) under this
Agreement:

7.1 Payment Default, Borrower fails to (a) make any payment of Loan Amount, the Loan
Fee or Interest on its due date, or (b) pay any other Obligations within three (3) Business Days after such
Obligations are due and payable;

7.2 Covenant Default.

(a) Borrower fails or neglects to perform any its obligations or violates any covenant
under this Agreement; or

(b) Borrower fails or neglects to perform, keep, or observe any other term, provision,
condition, covenant or agreement contained in this Agreement, and as to any default (other than those
specified in this Section 7) under such other term, provision, condition, covenant or agreement that can be
cured, has failed to cure the default within ten (10) days after the occurrence thereof. Cure periods
provided under this Section 7 shall not apply, among other things, to financial covenants or any other
covenants set forth in clause (a) above;

7.3 Material Adverse Change. A Material Adverse Change occurs;

7.4 Attachment; Levy; Restraint on Business. A notice of lien or levy is filed against any
of Borrower’s assets by any government agency, and the same is not, within ten (10) days after the
occurrence thereof, discharged or stayed (whether through the posting of a bond or otherwise);

7.5 Insolvency. The Lender’s notification that the Bankruptcy Process is not, in the Lender’s
discretion, progressing satisfactorily;

7.6 Judgments. Other than arising from the Bankruptcy Process, one or more final
judgments, orders, or decrees for the payment of money shall be rendered against Borrower and the same
are not, within ten (10) days after the entry thereof, discharged or execution thereof stayed or bonded
pending appeal, or such judgments are not discharged prior to the expiration of any such stay; or

7.7 Misrepresentations,  Borrower or any Person acting for Borrower makes any
representation, warranty, ot other statement now or later in this Agreement or in any writing delivered to
Lender or to induce Lender to enter this Agreement, and such representation, warranty, or other statement
is incorrect in any material respect when made.

8 LENDER'’S RIGHTS AND REMEDIES

8.1 Rights and Remedies. If an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, Lender
may, without notice or demand, do any or all of the following:
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(a) declare all Obligations immediately due and payable (but if an Event of Default
described in Section 7.5 ocecurs all Obligations are immediately due and payable without any action by
Lender);

b) verify the amount of, demand payment of and performance under, and collect any
Accounts and General Intangibles, settle or adjust disputes and claims directly with Account Debtors for
amounts on terms and in any order that Lender considers advisable, and notify any Person owing
Borrower money of Lender’s security interest in such funds;

(© make any payments and do any acts it considers necessary or reasonable to
protect the Collateral and/or its security interest in the Collateral. Borrower shall assemble the Collateral
if Lender requests and make it available as Lender designates. Lender may enter premises where the
Collateral is located, take and maintain possession of any part of the Collateral, and pay, purchase,
contest, or compromise any Lien which appears to be prior or superior to its security interest and pay all
expenses incurred, Borrower grants Lender a license to enter and occupy any of its premises, without
charge, to exercise any of Lender’s rights or remedies;

(d) ship, reclaim, recover, store, finish, maintain, repair, prepare for sale, advertise
for sale, and sell the Collateral. Lender is hereby granted a non-exclusive, royalty-free license or other
right to use, without charge, Borrower’s labels, Patents, Copyrights, mask works, rights of use of any
naine, frade secrets, trade names, Trademarks, and advertising matter, or any similar property as it
pertains to the Collateral, in completing production of, advertising for sale, and selling any Collateral and,
in connection with Lender’s exercise of its rights under this Section, Borrower’s rights under all licenses
and all franchise agreements inure to Lender’s benefit;

(e) demand and receive possession of Borrower’s books and records; and

)] exercise all rights and remedies available to Lender under this Agreement or at
law or equity, including all remedies provided under the Code (including disposal of the Collateral
pursuant to the terms thereof),

8.2 Power of Attorney, Borrower hereby irrevocably appoints Lender as its lawful attorney-
in-fact, exercisable upon the occurrence and during the continuance of an Event of Default, to:
(a) endorse Borrower’s name on any checks or other forms of payment or security; (b) sign Borrower’s
name on any invoice or bill of lading for any Account or drafts against Account Debtors; (¢) settle and
adjust disputes and claims about the Accounts directly with Account Debtors, for amounts and on terms
Lender determines reasonable; (d) make, settle, and adjust all claims under Borrower’s insurance policies;
(e) pay, contest or settle any Lien, charge, encumbrance, security interest, and adverse claim in or to the
Collateral, or any judgment based thereon, or otherwise take any action to terminate or discharge the
same; and (f) transfer the Collateral into the name of Lender or a third party as the Code permits,
Borrower hereby appoints Lender as its lawful attorney-in-fact to sign Borrower’'s name on any
documents necessary to perfect or continue the perfection of Lender’s security interest in the Collateral
regardless of whether an Event of Default has occurred until all Obligations have been satisfied in full and
Lender is under no further obligation to make the loan hereunder. Lender’s foregoing appointment as
Borrower’s attorney in fact, and all of Lender’s rights and powers, coupled with an interest, are
irrevocable until all Obligations have been fully repaid and performed.

8.3 Protective Payments, If Borrower fails to pay any insurance premium or fails to pay
any other amount which Borrower is obligated to pay under this Agreement, Lender may obtain such
insurance or make such payment, and all amounts so paid by Lender are immediately due and payable by
Borrower, bearing interest at the then highest rate applicable to the Obligations, and secured by the
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Collateral. Lender will make reasonable efforts to provide Borrower with notice of Lender obtaining such
insurance at the time it is obtained or within a reasonable time thereafter. No payments by Lender are
deemed an agreement to make similar payments in the future or Lender’s waiver of any Event of Default,

8.4 Application of Payments and Proceeds Upon Default. If an Event of Default has
occurred and is continuing, Lender may apply any funds in its possession, whether from Borrower
account balances, payments, proceeds realized as the result of any collection of Accounts or other
disposition of the Collateral, or otherwise, to the Obligations in such order as Lender shall determine in its
sole discretion. Any surplus shall be paid to Borrower or other Persons legally entitled thereto; Borrower
shall remain liable to Lender for any deficiency. If Lender, in its good faith business judgment, directly
or indirectly enters into a deferred payment or other credit transaction with any purchaser at any sale of
Collateral, Lender shall have the option, exercisable at any time, of either reducing the Obligations by the
principal amount of the purchase price or deferring the reduction of the Obligations until the actual receipt
by Lender of cash therefor,

8.5 Lender’s Liability for Collateral. So long as Lender complies with reasonable lending
practices regarding the safekeeping of the Collateral in the possession or under the control of Lender,
Lender shall not be liable or responsible for: (a) the safekeeping of the Collateral; (b) any loss or damage
to the Collateral; (c) any diminution in the value of the Collateral; or (d) any act or default of any carrier,
warehouseman, bailee, or other Person. Borrower bears all risk of loss, damage or destruction of the
Collateral,

8.6 No Waiver; Remedies Cumulative. Lender’s failure, at any time or times, to require
strict performance by Borrower of any provision of this Agreement shall not waive, affect, or diminish
any right of Lender thereafter to demand strict performance and compliance herewith or therewith, No
waiver hereunder shall be effective unless signed by the party granting the waiver and then is only
effective for the specific instance and purpose for which it is given. Lender’s rights and remedies under
this Agreement re cumulative. Lender has all rights and remedies provided under the Code, by law, or in
equity. Lender’s exercise of one right or remedy is not an election and shall not preclude Lender from
exercising any other remedy under this Agreement ot other remedy available at law or in equity, and
Lender’s waiver of any Event of Default is not a continuing waiver. Lender’s delay in exercising any
remedy is not a waiver, election, or acquiescence.

8.7 Demand Waiver. Borrower waives demand, notice of default or dishonor, notice of
payment and nonpayment, notice of any default, nonpayment at maturity, release, compromise,
settlement, extension, or renewal of accounts, documents, instruments, chattel paper, and guarantees held
by Lender on which Borrower is liable.

9 NOTICES

All notices, consents, requests, approvals, demands, or other communication by any party to this
Agreement must be in writing and shall be deemed to have been validly served, given, or delivered: (a)
upon the earlier of actual receipt and three (3) Business Days after deposit in the mail, first class,
registered or certified mail return receipt requested, with proper postage prepaid; (b) upon transmission,
when sent by electronic mail or facsimile transmission; (c) one (1) Business Day after deposit with a
reputable overnight courier with all charges prepaid; or (d) when delivered, if hand-delivered by
messenger, all of which shall be addressed to the party to be notified and sent to the address, facsimile
number, or email address indicated below. Lender or Borrower may change its mailing or electronic mail
address or facsimile number by giving the other party written notice thercof in accordance with the terms
of this Section 9.
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If to Borrower: MicroPlanet, Ine.
26285 Twelve Trees Lane NW, Suite 161
Poulsbo, WA 98370
Attn; Wolfgang Struss

Ifto Lender: Emerald Ventures Inc.
60 Helm Lane
Port Ludlow, WA 98365
Attn: Wayne Smith

10 CHOICE OF LAW, VENUE, JURY TRIAL WAIVER, AND JUDICIAL
REFERENCE

Regardless of any pending bankrupicy process (including the Bankruptey Process), Washington
law governs this Agreement and any security provided without regard to principles of conflicts of law,
Except to the extent that Lender may expressly consent to jurisdiction of the Bankruptcy Process,
Borrower and Lender each submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the State and Federal courts in King
County, Washington; provided, however, that nothing in this Agreement shail be deemed to operate to
preclude Lender from bringing suit or taking other legal action in any other jurisdiction to realize on the
Collateral or any other security for the Obligations, or to enforce a judgment or other court order in favor
of Lender. Borrower expressly submits and consents in advance to such jurisdiction in any action or suit
commenced in any such court, and Borrower hereby waives any objection that it may have based upon
lack of personal jurisdiction, improper venue, or forum non conveniens and hereby consents to the
granting of such legal or equitable relief as is deemed appropriate by such court. Borrower hereby waives
personal service of the summons, complaints, and other process issued in such action or suit and agrees
that service of such summons, complaints, and other process may be made by registered or certified mail
addressed to Borrower at the address set forth in, or subsequently provided by Borrower in accordance
with, Section 9 of this Agreement and that service so made shall be deemed completed upon the earlier to
occur of Borrower’s actual receipt thereof or three (3) days after deposit in the mails, proper postage
prepaid.

TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, BORROWER AND
LENDER EACH WAIVE THEIR RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL OF ANY CLAIM OR CAUSE OF
ACTION ARISING OUT OF OR BASED UPON THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY
CONTEMPLATED TRANSACTION, INCLUDING CONTRACT, TORT, BREACH OF DUTY
AND ALL OTHER CLAIMS. THIS WAIVER IS A MATERIAL INDUCEMENT FOR BOTH
PARTIES TO ENTER INTO THIS AGREEMENT. EACH PARTY HAS REVIEWED THIS
WAIVER WITH I'TS COUNSEL,

WITHOUT INTENDING IN ANY WAY TO LIMIT THE PARTIES’ AGREEMENT TO
WAIVE THEIR RESPECTIVE RIGHT TO A TRIAL BY JURY, if the above waiver of the right to a
trial by jury is not enforceable, the parties hereto agree that any and all disputes or controversies of any
nature between them arising at any time shall be decided by a reference to a private judge, mutually
selected by the parties (or, if they cannot agree, by the Presiding Judge of the King County, Washington
Superior Court) appointed in accordance with the Washington Rules of Civil Procedure (or pursuant to
comparable provisions of federal law if the dispute falls within the exclusive jurisdiction of the federal
courts), sitting without a jury, in King County, Washington; and the parties hereby submit to the
jurisdiction of such court. The reference proceedings shall be conducted pursuant to and in accordance
with the provisions of Washington Rules of Civil Procedure. The private judge shall have the power,
among others, to grant provisional relief, including without limitation, entering temporary restraining
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orders, issuing preliminary and petmanent injunctions and appointing receivers. All such proceedings
shall be closed to the public and confidential and all records relating thereto shall be permanently sealed.
If during the course of any dispute, a party desires to seek provisional relief, but a judge has not been
appointed at that point pursuant to the judicial reference procedures, then such party may apply to the
King County, Washington Superior Court for such relief. The proceeding before the private judge shall
be conducted in the same manner as it would be before a court under the rules of evidence applicable to
judicial proceedings. The parties shall be entitled to discovery which shall be conducted in the same
manner as it would be before a court under the rules of discovery applicable to judicial proceedings. The
private judge shall oversee discovery and may enforce all discovery rules and orders applicable to judicial
proceedings in the same manner as a trial court judge. The parties agree that the selected or appointed
private judge shall have the power to decide all issues in the action or proceeding, whether of fact or of
law, and shall report a statement of decision thereon. Nothing in this paragraph shall limit the right of any
party at any time to exercise self-help remedies, foreclose against collateral, or obtain provisional
remedies, The private judge shall also determine all issues relating to the applicability, interpretation, and
enforceability of this paragraph.

11 GENERAL PROVISIONS

11.1  Successors and Assigns. This Agreement binds and is for the benefit of the successors
and permitted assigns of each party. Botrower may not assign this Agreement or any rights or obligations
under it without Lender’s prior written consent (which may be granted or withheld in Lender’s
discretion). Lender has the right, without the consent of or notice to Borrower, to sell, transfer, assign,
negotiate, or grant participation in all or any part of, or any interest in, Lender’s obligations, rights, and
benefits under this Agreement.

11,2  Indemnification. Borrower agrees to indemnify, defend and hold Lender and its
directors, officers, employees, agents, attorneys, or any other Person affiliated with or representing
Lender (each, an “Indemnified Person”) harmless against: (a) all obligations, demands, claims, and
liabilities (collectively, “Claims™) claimed or asserted by any other party in connection with the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement; and (b) all losses or expenses in any way suffered, incurred,
or paid by such Indemnified Person as a result of, following from, consequential to, or arising from
transactions between Lender and Borrower (including reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses), except
for Claims and/or losses directly caused by such Indemnified Person’s gross negligence or willful
misconduct.

11.3  Time of Essence. Time is of the essence for the performance of all Obligations in this
Agreement.

11.4  Severability of Provisions, Each provision of this Agreement is severable from every
other provision in determining the enforceability of any provision.

11.5 Amendments in Writing; Waiver; Integration, No purported amendment or
modification of this Agreement, or waiver, discharge or termination of any obligation under this
Agreement, shall be enforceable or admissible unless, and only to the extent, expressly set forth in a
writing signed by the party against which enforcement or admission is sought. Without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, no oral promise or statement, nor any action, inaction, delay, failure to require
performance or course of conduct shall operate as, or evidence, an amendment, supplement or waiver or
have any other effect on this Agreement. Any waiver granted shall be limited to the specific circumstance
exptessly described in it, and shall not apply to any subsequent or other circumstance, whether similar or
dissimilar, or give rise to, or evidence, any obligation or commitment to grant any further waiver. This

-10-
{03170490.D0C;2 }



Agreement represents the entire agreement about this subject matter and supersedes prior negotiations or
agreements,

11,6 Survival. Al covenants, representations and warranties made in this Agreement
continue in full force until this Agreement has terminated pursuant to its terms and all Obligations (other
than inchoate indemnity obligations and any other obligations which, by their terms, are to survive the
termination of this Agreement) have been paid in full and satisfied. The obligation of Borrower in
Section 11.2 to indemnify the Indemnified Persons shall survive until all statutes of limitation with
respect to the Claims, losses and expenses for which indemnity is given shall have run.

11.7  Attorneys’ Fees, Costs and Expenses. In any action or proceeding between Borrower
and Lender arising out of or relating to this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its
reasonable attorneys’ fees and other costs and expenses incurred, in addition to any other relief to which it
may be entitled,

11.8  Construction of Agreement. The parties mutually acknowledge that both they and their
attorneys have participated in the preparation and negotiation of this Agreement. In cases of uncertainty
this Agreement shall be construed without regard to which of the parties caused the uncertainty to exist.

11.9  Relationship. The relationship of the parties to this Agreement is determined solely by
the provisions of this Agreement. The parties do not intend to create any agency, partnership, joint
venture, trust, fiduciary or other relationship with duties or incidents different from those of parties to an
arm’s-length contract,

11.10 Third Parties. Nothing in this Agreement, whether express or implied, is intended to:
(a) confer any benefits, rights or remedies under or by reason of this Agreement on any persons other than
the express parties to it and their respective permitted successors and assigns; (b) relieve or discharge the
obligation or liability of any person not an express party to this Agreement; or (¢) give any person not an
express party to this Agreement any right of subrogation or action against any party to this Agreement.

12 DEFINITIONS

12,1  Definitions. As used in this Agreement, the word “shall” is mandatory, the word “may”
is permissive, the word “or” is not exclusive, the words “includes” and “including” are not limiting, the
singular includes the plural, and numbers denoting amounts that are set off in brackets are negative. As
used in this Agreement, the following capitalized terms have the following meanings:

“Affiliate” is, with respect to any Person, each other Person that owns or controls directly or
indirectly the Person, any Person that controls or is controlled by or is under common control with the
Person, and each of that Person’s senior executive officers, directors, partners and, for any Person that is a
limited liability company, that Person’s managers and members,

“Business Day” is any day that is not a Saturday or Sunday.

“Code” is the Uniform Commercial Code, as the same may, from time to time, be enacted and in
effect in the State of Washington; provided, that, to the extent that the Code is used to define any term
herein and such term is defined differently in different Articles or Divisions of the Code, the definition of
such term contained in Article or Division 9 shall govern; provided further, that in the event that, by
reason of mandatory provisions of law, any or all of the attachment, perfection, or priority of, or remedies
with respect to, Lender’s Lien on any Collateral is governed by the Uniform Commercial Code in effect
in a jurisdiction other than the State of Washington, the term “Code” shall mean the Uniform Commercial
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Code as enacted and in effect in such other jurisdiction solely for purposes of the provisions thereof
relating to such attachment, perfection, priority, or remedies and for purposes of definitions relating to
such provisions,

“Collateral” is all of Borrower’s right, title and interest in and to the Purchase Order and all
proceeds of the Purchase Order.

“Contingent Obligation” is, for any Person, any direct or indirect liability, contingent or not, of
that Person for (a) any indebtedness, lease, dividend, letter of credit or other obligation of another such as
an obligation, in each case, directly or indirectly guaranteed, endorsed, co-made, discounted or sold with
recourse by that Person, or for which that Person is directly or indirectly liable; (b) any obligations for
undrawn letters of credit for the account of that Person; and (c) all obligations from any interest rate,
cutrency or commodity swap agreement, interest rate cap or collar agreement, or other agreement or
arrangement designated to protect a Person against fluctuation in interest rates, currency exchange rates or
commodity prices; but “Contingent Obligation” does not include endorsements in the ordinary course of
business. The amount of a Contingent Obligation is the stated or determined amount of the primary
obligation for which the Contingent Obligation is made or, if not determinable, the maximum reasonably
anticipated liability for it determined by the Person in good faith; but the amount may not exceed the
maximum of the obligations under any guarantee or other support arrangement,

“Copyrights” are any and all copyright rights, copyright applications, copyright registrations and
like protections in each work or authorship and derivative work thereof, whether published or
unpublished and whether or not the same also constitutes a trade secret,

“GAAP” is generally accepted accounting principles set forth in the opinions and
pronouncements of the Accounting Principles Board of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and statements and pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board or in such
other statements by such other Person as may be approved by a significant segment of the accounting
profession, which are applicable to the circumstances as of the date of determination.

“Governmental Approval” is any consent, authorization, approval, order, license, franchise,
permit, certificate, accreditation, registration, filing or notice, of, issued by, from or to, or other act by or
in respect of, any Governmental Authority.

“Governmental Authority” is any nation or government, any state or other political subdivision
thereof, any agency, authority, instrumentality, regulatory body, court, central Lender or other entity
exercising executive, legislative, judicial, taxing, regulatory or administrative functions of or pertaining to
government, any securities exchange and any self-regulatory organization.

“Indebtedness” is (a) indebtedness for borrowed money or the deferred price of property or
services, such as reimbursement and other obligations for surety bonds and letters of credit, (b)
obligations evidenced by notes, bonds, debentures or similar instruments, (c) capital lease obligations, and
(d) Contingent Obligations.

“Insolvency Proceeding” is any proceeding by or against any Person under the United States
Bankruptey Code, or any other bankruptey or insolvency law, including in Canada, also including
assignments for the benefit of creditors, compositions, extensions generally with its creditors, or
proceedings seeking reorganization, arrangement, or other relief.

“Intellectual Property” means all of Borrower’s right, title, and interest in and to the following:
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(a) its Copyrights, Trademarks and Patents;

(b) any and all trade secrets and trade secret rights, including, without limitation, any rights
to unpatented inventions, know-how, operating manuals;

(©) any and all source code;
(d) any and all design rights which may be available to a Borrower;

(e) any and all claims for damages by way of past, present and future infringement of any of
the foregoing, with the right, but not the obligation, to sue for and collect such damages for said use or
infringement of the Intellectual Property rights identified above; and

® all amendments, renewals and extensions of any of the Copyrights, Trademarks or
Patents.

“Lender Expenses” are all audit fees and expenses, costs, and expenses (including reasonable
attorneys’ fees and expenses) for preparing, amending, negotiating, administering, defending and
enforcing this Agreement (including, without limitation, those incurred in connection with appeals or
Insolvency Proceedings) or otherwise incurred with respect to Borrower,

“Lien” ig a claim, mortgage, deed of trust, levy, charge, pledge, security interest or other
encumbrance of any kind, whether voluntarily incurred or arising by operation of law or otherwise against
any property.

“Material Adverse Change” means: (a)a material impairment in the perfection or priority of
Lender’s Lien in the Collateral or in the value of such Collateral; (b) a material adverse change in the
business, operations, or condition (financial or otherwise) of Borrower; or (c) a material impairment of
the prospect of repayment of any portion of the Obligations.

“Obligations” are Borrower’s obligations to pay when due any debts, principal, interest, Lender
Expenses and other amounts Borrower owes Lender now or later, whether under this Agreement or
otherwise, including, without limitation, all obligations relating to letters of credit (including
reimbursement obligations for drawn and undrawn letters of credit), cash management services, and
foreign exchange contracts, if any, and including interest accruing after Insolvency Proceedings begin and
debts, liabilities, or obligations of Borrower assigned to Lender, and to perform Borrower’s duties under
this Agreement.

“Patents” means all patents, patent applications and like protections including without limitation
improvements, divisions, continuations, renewals, reissues, extensions and continuations-in-part of the
same.

“Permitted Indebtedness” is Borrower’s Indebtedness to Lender under this Agreement and
unsecured Indebtedness to trade creditors incurred in the ordinary course of business.

“Permitted Liens” are:

(a) Liens for taxes, fees, assessments or other government charges or levies, either (i) not due
and payable or (ii) being contested in good faith and for which Borrower maintains adequate reserves on
its Books, provided that no notice of any such Lien has been filed or recorded under the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended, and the Treasury Regulations adopted thereunder;

13-
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(b) Liens of carriers, warehousemen, suppliers, or other Persons that are possessory in nature
arising in the ordinary course of business so long as such Liens attach only to Inventory, securing
liabilities in the aggregate amount not to exceed Twenty Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000) and which are
not delinquent or remain payable without penalty or which are being contested in good faith and by
appropriate proceedings which proceedings have the effect of preventing the forfeiture or sale of the
property subject thereto; and

(c) Liens to secure payment of workers’ compensation, employment insurance, old-age
pensions, social security and other like obligations incurred in the ordinary course of business (other than
Liens imposed by ERISA).

“Person” is any individual, sole proprietorship, partnership, limited liability company, joint
venture, company, trust, unincorporated organization, association, corporation, institution, public benefit
corporation, firm, joint stock company, estate, entity or government agency.

“Requirement of Law” is as to any Person, the organizational or governing documents of such
Person, and any law (statutory or common), treaty, rule or regulation or determination of an arbitrator or a
court or other Governmental Authority, in each case applicable to or binding upon such Person or any of
its property or to which such Person or any of its property is subject.

“Responsible Officer” is any of the Chief Executive Officer, President, Chief Financial Officer
and Controller of Borrower.

(signature page follows)
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed as of
the Effective Date,

BORROWER:

MICROPLANET, INC,

By: \3&&«;,&“/ Qw “x,uu

Name: Wolfg 148(!116
Title: CEO

LENDER:

EMLRALD/?VLNl URI:% IN(‘

By: /ﬂ Bl g2 %fg 7/%;’

Name:lLWayne Smith
Title: CEO

(Signature page to Loan and Security Agreement)
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This is Exhibit'" 2 "to the Affidavit of
Wolfgang Struss ,

Sworn before me this_ 14" day of
Decymben 4 el $H
CFemaf & e D

A Notary Public
In and for the State of Washington

NOTARY PUBLIC |
STATE OF WASHINGTON ]
RAYMOND C. VARDY
My Appointment Expires
JUNE 25, 202¢
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' MICROPLANET, INC.
1 ARTICLEI

OFFICES _ 2

. Section 1. PRINCIFAL OFFICES, The board of direstors shall fix the location of the prinsipal

" exeastive office of the corporation at any place within or outside the State of Washington. The
nmpomhunﬂmﬂmmutmamg:ﬂmedoﬁmmmﬁsmwﬂashngmmmmmasmhaﬁm&

ﬁﬁmﬁm&mmnehyﬂmboardafdimcmm

Secmmz DTI-[EROFFICES Thebuardﬂfdlrﬂcﬁm&mayutanytmaﬂstahhshhmmhur
subordinate offices at any piace ot places,

- ARTICLE I

MEETINGS OF SHAREHOLDERS

Section 1. PLACE OF MEETINGS. Meetings of sharcholders shall be bheld et any place within

or outside the State of Washington designated by the board of directors. In the sbsence of any such

desigeation, shareholders’ mectings shall be held at the principal executive office nﬁhe gorporation. -

Section 2, ANNUAL MEETING. The annzal meeting of sharcholders ghall be held each year
ot a date and f a time designated by the board nfdremmktmchanﬂualMRgMSMbe
efected, and any other proper business within the power of the shareholders may be transacted.

Section 3. SPECTAL MEETENG. A special mecting of the shareholders may be called at ang

time by the board of directors, or by the chairman of the board, or by ihe president or vice president,
or by one or more shareholders holding shares in the aggl'ﬁgatﬂﬂl]tlﬂ'&dtﬂﬁastmﬂﬁﬁ timntm;m'cmt
of the votes at that meeting.
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Eammﬂmgmwhdbywpmwpmmmhuthaﬂﬂthdofm tha

: mﬁmﬁhmmmmmﬂmeuﬂmﬁngpﬂmm

proposed to be tzansactad, and shall be delivered personally of sent by registered mail or by tefegraphic
mﬂmﬁnﬁmﬂeﬁmhﬁe&mdmmmmﬁmmymmm or the
mﬁmnfﬁemmmmmﬁeuﬁmrmmgmemqmmﬂmmmbepmpﬂyg#m
to the shareholders entitled to vote, in accordance with the provisions of Section 4 and 5 of this Article

: Etﬁmammmgmnhehﬁdattheummqumdbymepﬁmwpmmmngthammn&m

less thaw thisty five.(35) nor more than sixty (60) days after the receipt of the request. If the notice is
not givea within fwenty (20) days after receipt of the request, the person of persons requesting the
meeting may give the notice. Nothing contained in this paragraph of this Section 3 shall be constnied

. as limiting, fixdng, uraﬂ‘echngtheumewﬁmamgufshuahﬂldmcﬂhdbymﬂthﬁbuard
ufdimmuramayhehclﬂ.

Scction 4. NOTICE OF SHAREHOLDERS' MEETINGS. Alf notices of meetings of

1

sharehuldemshal[hcMmoﬁmmmamﬂmmSmmiﬂﬁhmmumlm
than ten (10) noz more than sixty (60) days before the date of the meeting. The notice shall specify the
place, date-and four of the meeting and (i} in the case of 3 special meeting, the general nature of the
business to be transacted, or (i) iz the case of the anrmal meeting, those matters which the board of

direstors, at the time of giving the notice, intends to present for action by the sharcholders. The notice

of any meetmg at which directors are to be elected shall include the name of any nominee or nomifiees
whom, at the hmeﬂfﬂwncuce mmgmtmtcnﬂstapmsmfmdwhm

Ifmnnmspmpoaedtoheﬂkmﬂmymﬁngﬁ:rapmovﬂnf(}anuﬂaqmmamumm

whmhadumhasaduectmm:mﬁtﬁmmaimmg (ty an amendment of the articles of
incorporation, (i) 2 recrganization of the corporation, (iv) a voluntary dissolution of the corporation, -

of (V) aﬁsﬁhutonmdmmhﬂoneﬁaﬁ@macmrdmmwthﬁengbﬁufﬂutﬁaﬁdmgpmfmmd
shares, themﬁceshs]lalsastateﬂwgema&lnaﬂ;moftﬁatpmpoaal

Section 5. MANNER. OF GIVING NOTICE; ﬁFFIDAﬂT OF NOTICE. Noiice of any
sbareholdors' meeting shall be given either pecaonally or by first class mail or telegraphic or other
wiitten compramcation, charges prepaid, addressed to the shareholder at the address of that
shareholder appearing on the books of the corporafion or given by the shareholder to the corpocation
for the puspose of notice. If no sych address appears on the corpotation's books or has been so given,
nﬂbaesha]ibc@m&dmh&wbwngwmﬁsemm@shamﬁnﬁabyﬁmdassm&ﬂm!dcgmp&m
muﬁamﬂmmmmmmtbamnspmmpﬂmﬁwuﬂtqwfmbﬂsheﬂmm
once in & newspaper of general circulation in the coanfy where that office is Jocated. Notice shalt be
dsmwdtghavebemgwmatthzumawhﬂudakwmdpmumﬂy, deposited in the mail, delivered to
amm&rﬁmmmmmﬂyﬁmﬁdhmmmmﬂ
recipient by the person giving the sotice, ormbyﬁﬂnmmsqﬁmnmmmaum

Micmoplanet, Inc,
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. Hmnﬂﬁmﬂd&mwam&matﬁeﬁﬁrﬂﬁmﬂw&mmﬂg
books of the corporation is retumed to the corperation by the United States Postal Service marked to
"indica:telhmthcUnﬁadSumml.BmiwisunabEwdeﬁmrﬁenuﬁmtathsmmqanﬁu
mmﬁmmﬁmmmﬁMbedmﬂtomtmdulymmmm&g
Eﬁmsﬂbe'&wﬁla.mmwﬁmmm#ﬂEMMmmﬂ
executive oifice-of the corporation for a perind ufuneywﬁ‘umthedmafﬂmgivingofmmﬁm
' An affidavit of the mailing or other means ofgivingauymﬁceafany_shamhuldem’maﬁngmay
. be-executed by the secretary, assistant secretary, of any transfer agent of the corporation giving the
mﬁoe,andﬁledanﬁmaiutaimiinth&nﬁnutebgokafﬂmmpmaﬁm. :

- Section 6. QUORIIM. The preseace in person or by proxy of the bolders of a majority of the
) shmemi_ﬂed_tnmta at any meeting of sharebolders shisll constitute a quorum farlhc_trnnsacﬁmnf

of the ghares required to constitute a quorum, _ c
Section 7. ADJOURNED MEETING: NOTICE: Any shareholders' meeting, anmial or special,

whetha:ur_mta,quummisprﬁmt,mybcaﬂjoumedﬁom-t&ﬁamﬁmebythﬂmofthemajoﬂty-: '

of the shares represented at that meeting, either in persen or by proxy, but in the absence of 2 quomm,
mnthsrbuaine.g_smayheﬂ'answtedatthaimpeﬁng,meptaspmvidﬂ_dins'wﬁqnﬁofthixﬁmﬁde]l

When any meeting’ of shareholders, either annual or special, is adjouraed to another time of
place, nofice need not be given of the adjourned meeting if the time and place are announced at a
meetiqga;whinhtheaﬂjmmmmtist&km,lmlmammmrddamfhrtheadjmedmeaiﬂgisﬂxed,
or unless the adjournmest is for more than forty five (45) days from the date set for the eriginal
meeting, in which case the board of direstors shalf set 2 new secord date, Natice of any such adjourned
meeting, if required, shall be given to each shareholder of record enfited to vote at the adjouened
mesting in accordance with the provisions of Sections 4 and 3 of this Article T, At any adjourped

meeting the corporation may transact any business that might have been iransacted at the original

meeting.

Section 3. VOTING. The sharehiolders eatitled to vote at any meefing of sharcholders shall be

determined in accordance with the provisions of Section 11 of this Article IT, subject to the provisions

Of RCW § 23B.07:210 of the Washington Business Corporation Act, The sharcholders' vote may be -

by voice vote or by ballot, provided, however, that any election for directors must be by ballot, if

demanded by any shareholder before the voting has begun. On any matter other than the election of -
ﬁmmmmm:maywtapmufmeshmhﬁvmnfmmmmmwng

the remaining shares or vote them against the proposal, but, if the shareholder fails to specify the
ausnber of shares which the shareholder isvoting effirmatively, it wilf be conchusively presumed that
the shareholders' approving vote is with respect to il shares that the shareholder is entitled to voie.
Ifa quomm is present, the affirmative vote of the majority of the shares representsd at the meeting and

Microplanet, u.
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mmmmmm(mmmemﬁmﬂ)mmmEmﬂmm
unless the voie ufagmatarmmbﬁor%hnghydammmqmmdby‘ﬁ?mhmgmnﬂums
Corporation Act or by the articles of meorporation. -

Section . WATVER OF NMOTICE OR CONSENT BY ABSENT SHAREHOLDERS. The
transactions of ahy meeting of shareholdess, either anmual or special, however called and noticed, and
wherever held, shail be as valid as though had at a méeting duly held after regular call and notice, if a
© quorzm is present either in person of by proxy, atd if mthmbefnl‘eoraﬁerthemﬂehng,wchpm
entitled te voie, who was not present s persod or by proxy, signs a written. waiver of notice or a-
consent o 2 holding ofithe meeting, or an approval of the mimutes. The waiver of notice or consent
m&ﬂmfywﬁwﬁehﬂmhh%ﬁdmmmnwﬁmmﬂmwmw
of shareholders, except that if action is taken or proposed to be taken for approval of sny of thase
mattersspec;ﬁadmthﬂsemndparagmphnfﬂfedmn4afﬂmﬁmdeﬂ,thﬂwawerofnﬁuwurmnsm:t
shall state the general nature of the proposal. All such waivers, consents, or approvals shail be filed
w:ﬂxmecurpumtemcurdsnfmadaapaﬂafthenummsofﬂwm&ehng.

Attmdancebyaparmatammﬂngshaﬂalsﬂﬂ%ﬂ;tﬂamnfmﬂmufﬂﬁmemng,
except when the person objects, at the beginning of the meeting, to the transaction of any business
becauseﬂmmesﬁmg:smtlmﬁ:ﬂyﬁaﬂedorcommed,mdemept_ : _ ,

that attenidance at-a meetmg is not a waiver of any right to object to the consideration of matters
sequired by law to be inchuded in the notice of the meefing, but not so included, if that objection is

expressly made at the meeting,

- Sertion 10. SHAREHOEDER ACIION BY WRITTEN CONSENT WITHOUT A ¢
MEETING. Any action which may be takes at any anmuat or special meeting of sharefiolders mav be
taken without 3 meeting and withouz prior potice, if a consent in writing, setting forth the action so
takes, iz signed by all the holders entitled to vote on the action. Al such consents shall be filed with

the secretary of the corporation and shal be maintained in the corporate records. Any sharehalder -

giving & written conseat, or the shareholdes's proxy holder, of & transforee of the shares or a persanal
er&mmuﬂﬂdammmmhdemkamemhyamg
received by the secretary of the corporation before written consents of the mimber of shares required
o amimuzeﬂ:epmpnsed action have been ﬁledwuhthasem-.tary

- Section 11 RECURD DATE FOR SHAREHOLDER. N'DTICE, VOTING, AND GIVING
CONSENTS, For the putposes of determining the shareholders entitled to notice of any meeting or
1o vote o entitled to give consent to corporate action withont a meeting, the board of directors may

fix, in adyance, a rocord date, which shall not be more than sixty (60) days or less than ten (10) daye

befure the dafe of any such mesting or more than sixty (60) days before any such action without a
meeding, aud in this event oaly shareholders of record on the date so fixed are entitled to notice and
to vote or togive consents, as the case may be, notwithstandiag any transfer of any shares on the books
of the corporation after the record dage, extept as otherwise provided ia the Washington Business
Cotporation Act.
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If the board of directoss does not 5o fix a record date:

(a‘}ﬂmrmmﬂdmfnrdetamﬁnmgshamhoidmmﬁﬂedwnuﬁmnfmmm;eatai:mthg
of shareholderz shall be at the close of business on the business day next preceding the day on which
notice is given or, i nofice is waived, at the close of butiness on the husiness day next preceding the
gay on which the meeting is held. oo .-

(b} The record date for defermining sharebolders entitled to give consent to corporate action

in writing without 2 meeting, (£) whesi no prior action by the board has been taken, shall be the day'on

which the first written consent is given, or (if) when prior action of the board has been taken, ghall be

at the close of business on the day on which the board adopts the resobrtion relating to that action, or

'thﬂsbtﬁeth(ﬁﬂth)da;rhdbm-tha'dateofmchothﬁacﬁan,wﬁchﬁvﬁiﬂaiﬁ.

, Section 12, PRﬂX]ESEVHypmemﬂedtuwtefmdlmmwmmymhmmauﬂrM
have the right to do so either in person or by one or more sgents authorized by a writiea proxy signed
by the person and filed with the secretary of the carporation. A proxy shall be deemed signed if the

shareholder's name is placed on the proxy {whether by manual signature, typewriting, -telegraphic

transmissjon, or otherwise) by the sharcholder or the shareholder's atforney in fact, A validly executed
pmxjrwhichdoesnotma.tematitisirrmmhlaﬁaﬂmnﬁmeinﬁaﬂforﬂeamieﬁ'ectmﬂﬁs(i}muked
by the person executing it, before the voie pursuant to that proxy, by a writing delivered to the
corporation stating that the proxy is revoked, or by a subsequent proxy executed by, or attendance at
the meeting and voting in person by, the person exeguting the proxy, or (ii) written notice of the death
m'hmpanityﬂfthﬂmakerofthatprnxiiqrﬂudvedbythemrpomﬁﬂnhefumthﬂmmwmat
proxy is counted, provided, however, that no proxy shall be valid after the expiration of eleven (11)
mpnthsﬁ:-:::-mthcdatcﬁt‘thepmxy,nniessnth&rwiscpmﬁdedinﬂwpm.ﬁmmocabﬂitgafapmxy
that gtaies on its face that it is irrevocable shall be govemed by the provigions of section 23B.07.220
of the Washington Business Corporation Act. : .o

Section 13. INSPECTORS OF ELECTION. Before auy meeting of shareholders, the board of
directors may appoint any persons other than iominees for office to act &s inspectors of election at the
meeting or its adjournment. oo inspectors of election are so appointed, the chaizman of the meeting

may, and on the request of any sharcholder or a sharehoider's proxy shall, appoint inspectors of efaction

at the meeting. The number of inspectors shall be either one (1) or three (3). Ifingpectors are appointed
af a meeting on the request of one or mare shareholders or proxies, the bolders of a majority of shares
or their proxies present at the meeting shall determine whether one (1) or three (3) inspectass are to

* be appointed. If ay person appointed as inspector fails to appear os fails or refuses to act, the chairman

of the mesting may, and upon the request of any shareholder or a shareholder’s proxy shail, appoint a
person to fill thai vacancy. These inspectors shall: ; '

(a)mmmmamofmmmmudhgmdthavuﬁmmnfmh,meshm
represented at the meeting, the existenve of a quornm, and the aothenticity, validity, and effect of

proxies;
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(b} Receive vntas, ballota, or congents;

{c)Haarmddammmﬂchaﬂmgmmwmmmmyanﬂngmmmmm&
night fo voig .

(&) Count and tebulate all votes or consents;

. (&) Determine whea the polls shall clase;

(t)Detmmmt&ermh;md
(g}Duauyﬁh&acﬂﬂlﬂmayh&prapmt&mnﬂuﬂthﬂﬁ%ﬂﬂr?ﬂﬁmt&fmmssmaﬂ
- shareholders. i . :
ARTICLETH o OO

DIRECTORS

: Section 1, POWERS. Subject to the provisions of the Washington Business Corporafion Act
and aoy hmltahonsmthﬂarmlesal‘mmrpumuanauﬁ these bylaws relating to action required to be
approved by the shareholders o by the cutstanding shares, the business and affairs of the corporation
shall be manapged and alf corporate powers shall be exﬂ‘mdbymmdaﬂledimutmn of the board of
directors.

Wrthmrtprejudmemthcsegmemlpowm andsub]edtuthﬁsamehm:tatmm the board of

. direstors shall have the power to:

{a) Select and remove 23t officers, agsats, and employees of the corporation, prescribe any

powers and duties for them that are consistent with law, with the arnchﬂnfmmrpnmuun,andm!h
these bylaws, fix their compensation, and require from them security for fithfif service.

(b) Change the principal executive office or the prncipsl business office in the State of
Washington from one lostion to another, canse the corporation to be qualificd to do business in any
othar state, territory, dependesncy, or country 2nd conduct business within or without the Stats of
Washington, anddcmgnateanyplanewnmnmwnhmtthaStaieannshmgﬁmﬁ:ﬂhehpldingafm
shareholders' meeting or meetings, including anaeal mesiings.

{c} Adopt, maks, andusaamrporaieseal, prescribeth&fﬂfms ufcarhﬁc-aies of stock; and alter -

the form of the seal and certificates.
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{d) Authorize the issuance of-shm‘eﬂ'nfmckafthﬂmrpomﬁbnmmylaﬁﬁdms,h
consideration of money paid, labor done, services actually rendered, debits of securities canceled, or
tangible or intangible property actually received. : ] i

(c) Borfow money and incur indebtedness on behalf of the' corporation, and conse 1o be
gxecuted and delivered for the corporetion's purposes, in the corporate name, promissory notes, bonds,

; démﬂmﬁeedsnfmmmsﬂgm,ﬂﬂdmhwmhewﬁmmmeﬁdmmufmm.
ties :

- Section 2. NUMBER AND QUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS. The Board of Directors
shall consist of not less than one (1} nor more than 4% (9) persos, the exsct number being the
numhe:dulyelacmdhytheshamhaidmﬁ'mﬁmemﬁmewappnmted in accordance with the

- provisions of these Bylaws. Directors shall be elected by the. shareholders at each aimmal

shareholders’ meeting & hold office wntil the next anmnal mecting of the shareholders and unfi] their

| Tespective sucoessors are elected and qualified. Directors need not be shareholdess or residents of

the Stai of Washington. The mumiber of directors may at any time be increased or decreased by

resofution of either the sharcholMers or directors at any annual, specigl ar regular meeting; |

provided, that no decrease in the mimber of directors shall have the effect of shortewing the term

Becfion3. ELECTION AND TERM OF OFFICE OF DIRECTORS. Directors shafl be elécted
at each aamual meeting of the skarsholders to hold office untit the next anmusl mxeting. Bach direcior,
including a director eected to fill a vacancy, shall hold office ustil the expiration of the term for which.
elected and until a successor has bean elected and qualified. ¥

Section 4. VACANCIES. Vacancies in the board of directors nm}rbc filled by a majority of the -
remaiging directors whether or uot fess than a quorum, or by a sele remaining ditector, except thata

vacancy oreated by the remowval of 3 ditector by the vote or written consent of the sharsholdecs or by
court erder may be filled uul}rbythﬂvnteafamajuﬁtyuftheshamsenﬂﬁadtﬂmtereprmmma
duly held meeting at which a quorm is present, ar by the written consent of holders of a majority of
the cutstanding shares entitled to vote. Each director so elected shall hold offics untif the next apmual
meeting of the sharebolders end until 2 miccessor has been élected and qualified,

- A vacancy or vacancies in the board of directors skafl be deemed to exist inﬂ evmt.dfth-e:
death, resignation, or removal of any director, or i the board of directors by resplution declares vacant

_theufﬁmefadirecmfwhuhasbemdadmndnfuﬁmndmﬂdbyanmofmmormﬁﬁuednf

afdnqgmfﬁaauﬁnﬁzmmmbﬁnfMEhaeasﬁ,mHmeshﬂehﬂldm&ﬂMmymwﬁng

of shareholders ﬂ“ﬁchmydtmrmﬁnwmsm.deﬁa&mmmemmbﬁofdhmmmhé'

vated for at that meeting,
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TheM@mgdﬁﬁﬁ%mﬁé&nmﬂmyﬁmtuﬂ'mvmmwﬁm :
not filled by the directors, Mﬂnymh_dpmwmﬁmmmﬂaﬂmqn&ethsmmnfa
majority of the ouistanding shares entitled to vote. | : :

Anydkecmrmayrgsigueﬂ%cﬁvamghhgwﬂﬂmmﬁaemﬂmmﬁmoﬁhehomm
- president, the secretary, or the board of directors, nless the notice specifies  kater time for that
mﬁgnaﬁuntnbmomnﬁﬁmﬁﬁemgﬁﬁaﬁnnufadhﬂmkﬂhﬁwﬂaﬁﬁgﬁmgtﬁgm
nfﬁremmmaydmammmrm&kenﬂiwwhmtherﬂgnaﬁmhmmﬂwﬂ&&m. L

Nuredmﬁﬁnfﬁamthnﬁmdmmb&rufﬂkeﬁmshaﬂhawﬂmaﬂbﬁnfmﬁngmy
dirmtnrh;fmethaxdireetofsf&rﬂufnﬁiceexpircs._ o
Section 5. PLACE OF MEETING AND MEETINGS BY TELEPHONE. Regular meetings
of the baard of directars ruay be held at any place within or oulsi the State of Washington that has
been designated from time to {ime by the board. In the absence of such a designation, regular meetings
shall be held at the principal executive office of the corporation, Special meetings of the board shail be
hdduunjrplaaewithiqornutaidethesmteanashingmnthathasheendesignatedinthemﬁmnf
the meeting or, i not stated in the notice or there is not notics, at the principal executive office of the
COfpOation, Any megting, regular or special, may be held by confirence telephone or similar
COmErmication equipment, ashngasa]iiﬁrecwmparﬁcipathgiuthemeethgcmhwmemthcr,
audaﬂmchdire;mmshaﬂbedmedmbepmsamiﬁpﬂmmmamaaing

Section 6. ANNUAL MEETING. Trmeditely following each anmuzi meeting of sharchalders,

-'.1 .
{. {% the bogrd ufdirentorsshaﬂhnldamgu]armeeﬁqg at the piace that the apmial meeting of shareholders

was held or at any place that shall have been designated by the board of directors, for the purpose of
argamization, any desired election of officers, and the transaction of other business. Notice of this
mezting shalt not be required. : ; '

SeqtiunT,{J'IHERREGULARMEETmGS.Dtherre'gularmeeﬁngwufﬂmhml_ﬂ{sfdizwms :
shaﬂbeheldwitbmtcaﬂatsuchﬁmeasatmﬂﬁ'ﬂmﬁmﬂoﬁmebﬁﬁmdbythehuar&nfdiractnrs.ﬁnsh
__regularnmeﬁngsmaybehsldwﬁi_mutmﬁﬂ@_ .

Section 8. SPECJAL MEETINGS. Special meetings of ifie board of directors for ary purpose
of purposes may be called at anty time by the chairman of the board or the president, any vice president,
the secretary, or any two directors, '

that director’s address as it is shown on the tecords of the corporation. in caze the notice is imailed, it
shaltbe deposited in the Unifed States mail at least four (4) days before the time of the meefing, In case
the notice is delivered personally, or by telephone or talsgram, it shall he delivered personally or by
telephone or to the telegraph company ot least forty-cight (48) hours bafore the time of the meeting.
Any oral notice given personally or by telephone may be communicated either to the directororto a
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person at the nﬁ%pagfﬁndimﬂmiﬂwhﬁm.ﬁupmnﬁgiﬁngﬁcmﬁoehasm}nﬁdiweﬂ
pramptly commumicate it to the director. The notice need not specify the purpose of the meefing. nor
need it specafy the place if the meeting is to be held at the pringipal executive office of the corporation.

- Bection’s. QUORUM. A majority of the authorized mmmber of divoctors shall constitute 3
sonume for the {ransaction of business, except to adjourn as provided in Section 11 ofthis Article ITL.
Bvery act or -decision dong or made by a majority of the directors present at a meeting duly held at
‘which a quorum is present-shafl be regarded as the act of the board of directors. A meeting at which
* a-quorum is avtially present may comtinue to transact business notwithstanding the withdrawal' of
directors, if any action teken iz approved by at least a majority of the required quorum for that meeting,

- Seciion 10. WATVER OF NOTICE. The transactions of any meeting of the board of directors,
however called and noticed or wherever held, shall be as valid as though had ai 2 meeting duly held
afer regular calf and notice if 2 quorum i$ present and if, either before-or after the mesting, each of the
direciors not present signs a written waiver of notice, a conseat to holding the meeting, or an spproval

of the mimutes. The waiver of noticé or consent need not specify the purpose of the meeting. AUl such

waivers, consents; and approvals shall be filed with the corporate records or made a part of the nsinutes -

of the meeting. Notice of 2 meefing shall also be deemed duly given to any director who attends the
meeting withont protestiag, before or at its commencement, the lack of notice to that director.

Section 11. ADJOURNMENT. A majority of the dircctors preseat, whether or ot canstituting
a quofum, may,adiourn any mesfing ta another time agpd place. | '

Section 12. NOTICE OF ADJIOURNMENT. Notice of the time and place of holding an
adjourned meeting need not be given, unless the meeting is adjourned for mvore than twenty-four hours,
in whick case notice of the time and place shall be given before the time of the adjourned meeting, in
the manner specified in Section 8 of this Ariicle I, to the directors who were not present af the time
of the adjournment. ' :

Section 13. ACTION WITHOUT MEETING. Any action required or permitted 0 be taken
bry the board of directors miy be taken without = meeting, if all members of the board shall iadividualty

of collectively Zonsent in writing 1o that action. Such action by written congent shail haye the same -

fotce and effect as a unanimous vote of the board of directors. Such written consent or consents shail
hﬂﬂ&d'“’ithth&ﬂﬂﬂte&ﬂfﬁhﬂp:ﬂﬂ%d@ﬁfthﬁbﬂﬂfd. : : s 3 '

Section 14. FEES AND COMPENEATION QF DIRECTORS. D1mr.:tms and members of -

commmtices may receive such compensation; i any, for their services, and such reimbursement of

expenses, as may be fixed or determined by resolution of the board of direciors This Section 14 shall

not be construed to prechuds any director fom serving the corporation in any other capacity as an
officer, agent, employee, or atherwise, and rmoaiving compensation for thase services. :

Microplanet, Inc.
BYLAWS - PAGT &

L

R L e




o AR'I‘ICLEW. .

Section 1. COMMITTEES OF DIRECTORS. The board of directors pay, by resolution -

adopted by a majority of the muthorized number of directors, designate ope or more comuhittees, each

comsisting of two or miore directers, to serve at the pleasure of the board. The Yoard may designate one .
o more directors as alternate members of any comumittes, who may replace any absest member at any °
meatmgufthemmmrttee.Anyunmmmmemwpxuwdedmthamsnlnﬁmnﬁhebwd, shall

Im.vealithﬂmnhmtynftheb:}m‘d, except with respect to:
() The approval of any action which, undertheWashmgtonE‘umnuss Corporation Act, also

' ..raqulresshatehuldms appfwaiorapprovalnfthﬂomm.dlma,

{b) The filling of vacancies on the board of directors or on anymmm;ttee;
- (¢} The Iixing of{:mupmsauunufthe dmtorsibrﬂmguniﬁebuarﬂ OF Oh any cumm:tbae,
(D) The amendmeat oF repeat of bylaws or the aduptmn of new bylaws,

{e) The amendwent or repeal of any resciution c:-f the board of directars which by its express
terms is not so amendable urmpeaiable

{f) A distribution to ﬂmsi:m_ehnlﬂers oi the corparation, sxcept at 2 rate orin a periodic amount
or within a price renge determined by the boand of directors; or

{£) The appointment of any other committess of the board of direciors or the mewmbers of these
| committess. !

of these bylaws, Section § (place of mectings), 7 (reguilar meetings), 8 (special meetings and nofice),
9 {quorum), 10 {waiver of notics), 11 (adjonrameat), 12 (eotice of adjournment), and 13 {action

without meeting), with such changes in the context of those bylaws s are necessary to sabstitirie the
comotitiee and its members for the board of divectors and its members, except that the time of regular -

megtings of committees may be determined either by resohstion of the board of directors or by
resphntion of the committee; speciat mestings of committess may also be called by resclution of the
beard of directors; and notice of special meetings of committees shall also be given to all alternate
members, who shali hsive the right to atiend all meetings of the cotamittee, The board of directars may
adopt rules for the government of apy committee not inconsfstens with the provisions of these bylaws.
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ARTICLEV
OFFICERS

Section 1. OFFICERS. The officers of the corporation shall be 2 president, a secretary, and 2
ireasurer. The corparstion may also have, at the discretion-of the baard of directors, a chairman of the

, board, one of more vice presidents, ong or more assistant secietaries, one-or more assistant treasurers,
i audmmoﬁmasmaybea;)pmnmdmaﬂWIﬂaumwlththtpmmmofSMunBinhm

Article ¥, ﬁnymmberufofﬁmmybehddﬁyﬂmm&m

Section 2. ELECTION OF OFFICERS. The officers of the corporation, except suck officers
o8 may be appointed in accordance with the provisions of Section 3 or Section 5 of this Article V, shall
bé chosen by the board of direciors, and each shall serve at the pleasure of the board, Sl.lhjﬂl:ttl’.’l the
rights, i any, of an officer under any contract of smployment.

Section 3. SUBCRDINATE OFFICERS. The board of directors may appoirt, and gy
empower the president to appoint, such other officers as the business of the corporation may reguire,
each of whom ¢hall hold office for sach period, have suuch authority and perform such duties as are
providedinthehylawsurnsthe.hua:dofditthsma}rﬁnmﬁmétﬂ!inmdﬂm‘mim '

Section 4. REMOVAL AND RESIGNA’ITDN OF OFFICERS. Subject to'the rights, if any,
of ant officer under any contzact of employzent; any ofiicer may be removed, either with or without
cause, by the board of directors, at any regular or epecial meeting of the board, or, except in case of
an officer chosen by the board of directors, by any officer upon whom such power of removal may be
mnfm‘edhyﬂmhuard of directors. . :

- Any officer may resign at any time by giving writtea notice to the corporation. Any resignation
shalf take effect at the date of the receipt of that notice or at any later time specified in that notice;
unless otherwise specified in that notice, the acceptance of the resignstion shall not be necessary to
make'it effective. Any resignation is without prejudice to the rights, i any, of the corporation under
any contract to which the officer is a party.

Section 5. VﬁE&NCIES IN CFFICES, Avasamymanynﬂicehemmofdeatﬁ, resignation,
removal, disqua]zﬁcauannranyuthm- cause shallhaﬁﬂadmthe manzer presciibed in these bylaws for
regular appointments to that office, - - _

Section 6, CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD. The chairman of the board, if such 2 nfficer is

- elected, shall, if present, preside at meetings of the board of directors and exercise and pesform such
other powers and duties as may be fram time to-time assigned {0 him by the board of directoss or.

prescribed by the bylaws. If there is no president, the chairman of the board shall in addition be the
chief executive officer of the corporation and shall kave the powers and duties presmhad in Section
?ﬂfth;sAmIﬁEV
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Section 7. PRESIDENT, Subject to such powers, if any, 25 may be given by the bylaws or
board of directors to the chairman of the board, if there is such an officer, the president shall be the
general manager and chief executive officer of the corporation and shall, subject to the contrel of the
board of direciors, have general supervision, direction, and conteol of the tusiness and the officess of
thelit}rpuratiﬂﬂ_"Hﬂsha]iprﬁﬁd&ﬂﬂﬂmﬁﬂgsﬂfthesbmehnldmmd;inmeﬂbﬂﬂumnfﬂwfhﬂm
qf the board, ot, if there is none, ai all reetings of the board of directors. He shall have the general
powers and dufies of management usupily vested in the office of president of a corporation, and shall

'I have such other powers and duties as may be prescribed by the board of directors or the bylaws.

Section 8. VICE PRESIDENTS, In the absence or disability of the president, the vice

. presidents, if suy, in order of their rank as fixed by the board of directors, or, if not ranked. 1 vics
president designated by the board of ditactors, shall perform all the duties of the president, and when
. sdacting shall have ail the powers of, and be snbject to a8 the restrictions upon, the president. The vice

peesidents shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as from time 1o time may be
prescribed for them respeciively by the board of directors or the bylaws, and the presidest or the
chairman of the board if there is no president. ' : .

Section'9. SECRETARY, The secretary shall keep or cause to be kept, at the principal

executive office or such other place as the board of directors may direct, a book of primntes of alf

mestings and aetions of directors, committens of directors, and shareolders, with the time and place -

ofholding, whether regidar or special, and, if special, how authorized, the notice given, the names of

those present at directors' meetings or comumittee meetings, the aumber of shares present .of

represented at sharcholders’' meetings, and the proceedings.

The secretary shall keep, or cause to be kept, ot the principal execative office or at the office
of the corporation’s trapsfer agent or regisiray, as determined by resoltion.of the board of directors,
a record of shareholders, or a daplicate record of shareholders, shawing the names of all shareholders
and their addresses, the number and classes of shares held by each, the mumber and date of certificates
issued for the seme, snd the munber and date of cancellation of every certificaté surrendered for
canpellation. '

Thesem‘eur},rorassistantsecmta!y,ﬁftﬁqmahseﬂﬂtmﬁbietu&ﬁtﬂfr&ﬁmemaﬂ,any
other officer of the. corporation, shall give, or cause to be given, notice of all meefings of the

* shareholders, of the board of directors, and of commuttees of the board of direstors, required by the

bylaws or by faw 10 be given. The secretary shall keep the seal of the corparation if one is adopted, in

sai:‘emsmdy,andshai[hmanmhnﬂmpumandpafammhmhﬁduﬁﬁa;mnyhepmﬂm‘bﬁdby :

the board of directors or by the bylaws.

Section 10, TREASURER. The treasurer shali keep’ aud tmintsin, or cause fo be kept and

maigtzined, adequate and comect buoks and records of accounts of the properties and husiness
transactions of the corporation, includiag accounts of its assets, Kabilities, receipts, disbussements,

be open 10 Inspection by any director.

geins, losses, capital, retained earnings, and shares. The books of account shall at all reasonable times
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mwﬁmwﬂMdmﬂﬁwmmhd@ﬂgmﬁwmmem.HeMﬁm
the fimds of the corporation as may be o by the board of directors, shall render to the president
aﬁﬁrmmmmqmumigmammufaﬂ'ofﬁauMmm ;
nndﬁfﬂmﬁnanda[wnﬁﬁipnufﬁwwpomﬁbn,mshﬂ:hwe'uthﬁpﬂmmd perform such other
duﬁasasmayheprescrihedhythahm;r&ufdimm:sor_meb}rim, :

ARTICLEVI

INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES
AND OTHER AGENTS

1 1

The corporation shall, to the maximum- extent permitted by the Washingion Business
Corporation Act, have power to indenmify each of iits agents against expenses, fudgments, fines,
settlements dnd other amounis actuslly and reasonably incurred inmmcﬁqnwith any proceeding

power ta advance io eachmhagant.mqaensesiucuxmdindaﬁanding_mjmpmmmgm the
maximnm extent pecmitted by that law. For purposes of this Article, an "agent” of the corporation
includes any person who js or was a dicector, officer, employee, or other agent of the carporation, or
is or wag serving at the request of the corporation as a director, officer, employes, or agent of ancther
corporation, partoership, foint venture, tnast, or other eaterprise, or was a director, officer, eiiiployee,

of agent of a cotporation which was 2 predecessor corparation of the corporatica or of another

enterpzize at the request of such predecessor corporation. -

AR'I'I{l_E?]I.

RECORDS AND REPGRTS

Section 1, MATNTENANCE AND INSPECTION OF RECORD OF SHAREHOI.DERS. The
corporation shall keep af its principal executive office, or the office of its transfer ageat or registrar,
if cither be appomted and as determined by resolution of the baard of directors, a record of its
sitareholdess, giving the names and addresses of all shareholders and the number and class of shares
bedd ty each sharcholder, - :
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shareholders' nenes and addrmseq,whﬂﬂemﬁﬂadhmtefurﬂmd&cﬁm&fﬁmﬁms, and heir
shareboldings, as of the most recent record date for which that fist has been compiled or as of a date
specified by the shaceholder after the date of demand. This fisi shail be made available to any such
sharehoider or shareholders by the transfer agent on or before the later of five (5) days after the
dema:ndism:&?ec!arthﬂdateﬂp&dﬁedhﬂndmmdasthedaieasefwhichth&ﬁstismhemmﬂnd
The record of shareholders shall also be apen to inspection on the written demand of any shargholder

'Eizmmmfaw:mgmmmﬁmmuanyﬁmmmﬂmstmmmm

related to the holder’s interests as a shareholder or as the holder of a voting trust certificete. Any
inspecﬁonau& copying under this Section I may be made in person or by an agent or aftomey of the
shareholdéer or holder of & voting trust cerfificate making the demand.

Section 2. MARNTENANCE AND INSPECTION OF BYLAWS. The corporation shall keep
atits principal egecuitive office, or ifits principal execittive oifice 5 not in the State of Washington, at

its principal business office in this state, the origingl or & copy of the bylaws as amended to date, which -

shall be open to mspection by the shareholders at all reasonable fimes during office hourz, I the
principal executive office of the carporation is outside the State of Washington and the corporation hag

- no principal business office in this state, the Sacretary shall upos the written request of any

shacehoider, furnish to that sharebolder a copy of the hylaws as amended to date.

_ Section 3. MAINTENANCE AND INSPECTION OF OTHER CORPORATE RECORDS.
The accounting books and records ard mimies of procecdings of the shareholders and the board of
directors and any committee Or conmnittees of the board of directors shall be kept at such place or
places designated by the-board of directors, or, i the absence of such designation, at the prisicipal
executive office of the corporation. The minutes shall be kept in written form and the accqunting books
and records shall be kept either in written form or in any cther form capable of being converted iafo
written form. The minntes and acconnfing books and records shall be open to inspectica npon the
written demand of aay shareholder or holder of voting trust certificate, at any reasonable tims during
usuzl buisiness hours, for 2 purpose reasonably related to the holder's interests as a sharebalder or as
the holder of 2 voting tmst certificate. The inspection may be made in person or by an agent or
attorgey, aud shall incinde the night to copy and make extracts. These rights of iaspection shatl extend
to the records of each subsidiary corparation of the corporation. :

Section 4. INSPECTION BY DIRECTORS. Every director shall have the absolrte right at any
reasonable time to inspect all books, records, aud documents of every kind and the physical properfies
of the corporation and each ofiits subsidiary corporations. This inspaetion by a director awy be made
in person, ot by an agent or attormey and the right of inspection includes the right to copy and make
extracts of docurnents. :

' Section 5. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, A, copy of any anruzl financial statement and any

income statement of the corporation for each quarterdy period of each fiscal year, and any
accompanying balzace sheet of the corporation as of the end of each such period, that has been
prepared by the corporation shall be kept on fils in the priacipal executive office of the corporation for
twelve (12) months and each such statement shall be exhibitad at all reasonable times to any
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-ahm‘dmidetdemandmganmnumafaaysmh statnmentmampjrshallbe ailed 10 any such.

shareholder.

't diarchioldér brxhﬂmhufdershﬂltﬁng at) least five percent (5%) uﬁheoutstandmg shares of
amy ¢lass of stock of the corporation make a written request to the corporation for an income statement
of the corporafion for the three-month, six-month, or nine-month period of the currenk fiscal year
ended more than thirty {30) days before the date of the request, and a balance sheet of the cotporation

" a3 of ‘the end of that period, the chief financial officer shall canse that statement 1o be mepared, if not

atready prepared, and shall deliver personally or maif that statemeat or statements to the person making
the request within thirty'(30) days after the receipt of the request. I the corporation has not sent the
shareholders its annwal report for the last fiscal year, ﬂnsrepurtshaﬂhkemsebedghvundurmaﬂed

4o the shareholder or shareholders within thirty (ﬂﬂ) days afier the request.

The corporation shall also, ﬁnﬂmwmteurequestufanysharehalder mail to the shareholder
a copy of the last anmual, sem;—nnuna!,ﬂrquarhaﬂjrmmastatemmtwhmhrthasmepamd, and a
baimmﬁeetasafﬂmmdoﬂhatpmod

ThgquaﬂmiymmmammmmmmhmeahaetsmﬁnﬂdtﬂmthsmMﬁwﬂbﬂ

m:.ompamedbytherepnrt,lfaujgofanjrmdepmdenta;mmtmmgagedbyihemrpormﬁnorﬂm,

centificate of an- anthorized officer of the corporation that the financial statements were prepared
withoat andit from the books and recerds of the corporafion. :

ARTICLE VI

GENERAL CORPORATE MATTERS

Section 1. RECORD DATE FOR PURPOSES OTHER THAN NOTICE AND VOTING. For
purposes of detarmining the shareholders entitled to receive payment of any dividend or other
distribution or aflotment of any rights or entitled to exercise any rights in respect of any other lawful
action {other than action by shareholders by writien conseat without a meeting), the board of directors
may i, in advarce, a record date, which shall noi be mass than sixty (60) days before any such action,

and in that case anly shareholders of record on the date sp fixed are entitled to receive the dividend,’

distribmtion. o aflotment of tights or to exercise the rights, as the case may be, notwithstandiog any
transfer of any shares on the books of the corporation after the record date so fixed, except as

otherwise provided in the Washington Business Corporation Act,

ing.
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Hthe board of dircctors does not so fix a record date, the record daie for determining
shareholders for any such purpose shall be at the close of business on the day on which the board

later.

\ " Section 2. CHECKS, DRAFTS, EVIDENCES OF INDEBTEDNESS. All checks, drafts, or
other arders for payment of money, aotes, pr other evidences of indebtedness, issued in the name of
or payable to the corporation, shalt be signed or sedorsed by such person or persons and in such
‘manner ag, from time to time, shall be determined by resofution of the board of directors. :

Section 3. CORPORATE CONTRACTS AND INSTRUMENTS; HOW EXECUTED. The
board of directors, except a8 otherwise provided in these bylaws, may authorize any officer or officers,
'agent or agents, 1o enter inio afry confract or execute amy instrument in the nzme of and on behalf of
the corporation, and this authority may he general or confined to specific jnstances, and, unless so0

autherized or ratified by the board nfdirmmofﬁiihmmewpqwufmnﬂim,nubﬁo&; :

agent, of efiployee shall have sy powes or Authority fo bind the corporation by any contract or
engagemert or to pledge its credif or fo render it lisble for any porpose or for any amonnt.

Section 4. CERTIFICATES FOR SHARES. A certificate or certificates for shares of the capital
stock of the cotporation shail be issued to each shareholder when any of these shares are fully paid, and
the board of directors may suthorize the issuance of certificates or shares as pardy psid provided that

thase certificates shall state the amount of the consideration to be paid for them and the amount peid.

Al certificates shall be sigued in the name of the corporation by the chairman of the board of vice
chairman of the board or the president orvice president and by the chigffinancial officer or an agsistant
treasurer of the secretary or any assistant secretary, certifying the mmber of shares and the class or
series of shares owned by the shareholder. Any or ell of the sigeatures on the certificate may be
facmile; In case any officer, transfer agent, or registrar wha has signed or whose facsimile signature
has been piaced on a certificate shalt have ceased to be that officer, transfer agent, or registrar before
that certificate is fssued, it may be kssued by the corporation with the same effect ag if that pezson were
an officer, transfer agent, of registrar at the date of issue. _

Section 5. LOST CERTIFICATES. Except as provided m this Section 5, no new certificates -
_ for shares shall be issued to replace an old certificate unless the Jatter is surrendered to the corporation

and canceled at the same time. The board of directors may, in case any share certificate or cestificate
for any other security is lost, stolen, or destroyed, authorize the issuance of a replacement certificate
on such terms and conditions as the board may require, including provision for indemnification of the

corporation secured by 2 bond or other adequate security sufficient to profect the corporation against
any ¢laim that may be made dgainst it, inchiding any expense or lability, op account of the alleged loss,

theft, or destruétion of the certificate or the issuance of the replacement cerfificate.

Section 6. REPRESENTATION OF SHARES OF OTHER CORPORATIONS. The chaicman
of the board, the prasident, or amy vice president, of any other person authorized by resolution of the
board of directors orby aay af the foregoing designated officers, is mthorized 10 vote on behalf of the

BYLAWS -PAGE [6
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duly executed by these officers.

Section 7. CONSTRUCTION AND DEF]NITIDNE Unlesé the context requires otherwise, -
the general provisions, rules of construction, and defiifions in the Washington Business Corporation *

Act shall gavern the construction of these bylaws. without limiting the generality of this provision, the
amgularnumbermcludeétheplmahtbephminunﬁermch]dasthﬂﬂngdar and the term “person”
mnhﬂﬂsbuthamrpumh{mauﬂanaﬁrralpﬂ'm " ,

Section 8. REIMBURSEMENT. If all or part of the salgry or other compensation, inferest ar

rent paid to, of entertazinment expense incuired by, anemployee, officer, or director of the corporation -

is finafly determined not to be allowable as a federal or state income tax deduction, the employee,
ﬁﬁwnrdummshaﬂr&paymthﬂmrpummﬂthammﬂdmaﬂmwd The board of directors shalf
eaforce repa}rmept of each such amount {imllmnred. .

' ARTIELEIX

AMENDMENTS

Sostion 1. AMENDMENT BY SHAREHOLDERS. New bylaws may be adopied or these
bylaws may be amended or repealed by the vate or writien consent of bolders of & majority of the

mmmudmgshﬂrcsemiﬂedmvme,ameptasmhmmwmﬂedhth these bylaws, or the asticles '

ef incorporation, provided, Bowever, that ifthe articles of incorporation of the torporation set forth
the mumber of authorized diretiors of the corporation, the authorized number of directors may be
changed only by a amendment of the articles of incorporation. _

. Section 2. AMENDMENT BY DIRECTORS. Subjoct to the rights of the sharefiolders as
provided in Section 1 of this Article IX, bylaws, other than a bylaw or an amendment of a bylaw
uhangmgthemthﬂnzed numhﬁnfdlra:mrs, magbcadopt&d amended, or repealed hyﬂ':lehuard af
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. SECRETARY‘S CERTIFICATE OF ADOPTION OF BYLAWS

Ihafhyoqmﬁ'thatlmﬂmduhrdﬂcmdandamﬂgﬂwﬁaﬁquICRGMETM 2
' Washington corporation, and that the foregoing Bylaws, comprising 17 pages, constitute the

&8 B}dawsofmdmrpcrmasduly adopted at a meeting of the Boand of Directors thereof held

oo Aprl |
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This is Exhibit "3 " to the Affidavit of
Wolfgang Struss |

Sworn before me this__ {4 ' day of

JDecoymbea]  , 2p ik
e (A
A Notary Public

In and for the State of Washington

NOTARY FUBLIC
STATE OF WASHINGTON
RAYMOND C. VARDY
My Appointment Expires
JUNE 25, 2020




¥ 0One Hundred Twenty-Four Thousand Three Hundred Thirty and 96/100

Scotia Capital ITF Tetreault #4834395719
Scotia Capital ITF Myron Tetreault

40 King St. West 23rd floor, Income Dept
Toronto, ON MSH 1H1

Attn: Grace Lorenti

MEMO

Scotia Capital 1TF Tetreault #4834395719

Date Type Reference
08/31/2012 Bill  Convertible note
08/31/2012 Bill Interestcn

Original Amt. Balance Due
CAD 113,000.00 CAD 113,000.00
CAD 11,330.96 CAD 11,330.96

HSBC

Scotia Capital ITF Tetreault #4834395719

Date Type Reference
08/31/2012 Bili  Convertible note
08/31/2012 Bill  Interestcn

Original Amt. Balance Due
CAD 113,000.00 CAD 113,000.00
CAD 11,330.96 CAD 11,330.96

HSBC

312012
DDYYVYY

**124,330.96

83172012

Discount Payment
CAD 113,000.00
CAD 11,330.96

Cheque Amount CAD 124,330.96

CAD 124,330.96

8/31/2012

Discount Payment
CAD 113,000.00
CAD 11,330.96

Cheque Amount CAD 124,330.96

CAD 124,330.96



DATE 07122011
M MDDYYYY

=****One Hundred Twenty-Five Thousand and 00/100 **125,000.00

Calafate Holdings Ltd.
710, 304 - 8 Avenue S.W.
Calgary, AB T2P 1C2

Canada
MEMO
Calafate Holdings Ltd.
Date Type Reference

07/12/2011 Bill Redeem

HSBC

Calafate Holdings Lid.

Date Type Reference
07/12/2011 Bill Redeem

H3BC

711272011

Original Amt. Balance Due Discount Payment
CAD 125,000.00 CAD 125,000.00 CAD 125,000.00
Cheque Amount CAD 125,000.00

CAD 125,000.00

71122011

Original Amt. Balance Due Discount Payment
CAD 125,000.00 CAD 125,000.00 CAD 125,000.00
Cheque Amount CAD 125,000.00

CAD 125,000.00



paTE 07122011
M M DDVY Y Y Y
4% Three Thousand and 00/100 ** 3,000.00

Calafate Holdings Lid.
710, 304 - 8 Avenue S.W.
Calgary, AB T2P 1C2

Canada
MEMO
Calafate Holdings Ltd. 7M12/2011
Date Type Reference Original Amt. Balance Due Discount Payment
07/12/2011 Bill  Interest CAD 3,000.00 CAD 3,000.00 CAD 3,000.00
Cheque Amount CAD 3,000.00
HSBC CAD 3,000.00
Calafate Holdings Lid, 71122011
Date Type Reference Original Amt. Balance Due Discount Payment
07/12/2011 Bill  Interest CAD 3,000.00 CAD 3,000.00 CAD 3,000.00

Cheque Amount CAD 3,000.00

HSBC CAD 3,000.00



This is Exhibit " " to the Affidavit of
Wolfgang Struss .

Sworn before me this __ 1" © day of
D Qc‘.{;'niyﬁm ol b

A Notary Public
In and for the State of Washington

NOTARY PUBLIC
STATE OF WASHINGTON
RAYMOND C. VARDY
My Appointment Expires
JUNE 25, 2020




MicroPlanet Technology Corp.
Formerly HF Capital Corp.

Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

December 31, 2005 and 2004



MicroPlanet Technology Corp.
Formerly HF Capital Corp.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Expressed in United States dollars)
December 31, 2005 and 2004

12. INCOME TAXES (continued)

The potential tax benefits related to the loss carry forwards and other temporary differences, the
application of which may be restricted, have not been recognized in these financial statements as it is
currently uncertain whether such assets will be realized in the carry forward period. Also, the availability
of the above deductions for income tax purposes have been restricted due to previous changes in control
of companies in the group and may be further restricted if there are future changes in control. U.S. net
operating loss carry forwards of $3,735,000 are limited annually to an amount calculated by reference to
the fair market value of MicroPlanet, Inc. on the date of the change in ownership. The expected limitation
is approximately $600,000 per year.

13. COMMITMENTS

MicroPlanet entered into a lease agreement for its office space commencing in August, 2004 and expiring
in July, 2007. The Company is committed to make approximate annual minimum lease payments as
follows:

2006 $ 36,000
2007 $ 22,000

14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Included in payables and accruals is $1,250 (2004: $1,333) owing to shareholders of the company. As at
December 31, 2004, $12,500 payable to the wife of an officer for services rendered was included in
payables and accruals. This amount was paid during the year and the balance at December 31, 2005 is
nil.

During 2005, the Company entered into a sales representative agreement with a private company called
GreenVolt Energy Savings Corp. (“GreenVolt”), in which certain current directors of the Company have an
ownership interest. Pursuant to this agreement, GreenVolt is responsible for promotion and sales efforts
in Canada and may be paid commissions for sales therein. During 2005 the Company paid C$150,000 to
GreenVolt to assist in establishing a Canadian market for the Company’s products. This amount was
recognized as a marketing expense in U.S. dollar equivalent of $120,588.

Included in convertible promissory notes as at December 31, 2004 is $45,000 plus accrued interest
payable to directors and officers of the Company. The convertible promissory notes were converted into
equity during the year and at December 31, 2005 the balance is nil.

During the year, the Company incurred $126,000 (2004: $96,000) in compensation expenditures to
directors. At year end, $102,000 (2004: $96,000) in included in deferred compensation.

All related party transactions have been recorded at the exchange amount, which is the amount of
consideration established and agreed to by the related parties. The exchange amount was negotiated
between the independent officers and directors who are unrelated to the transaction and the related party
to the transaction.
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MicroPlanet Technology Corp.

Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

December 31, 2006 and 2005



MicroPlanet Technology Corp.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States dollars)
December 31, 2006 and 2005

12. INCOME TAXES (continued)

The potential tax benefits related to the loss carry forwards and other temporary differences, the
application of which may be restricted, have not been recognized in these financial statements as it is
currently uncertain whether such assets will be realized in the carry forward period. Also, the availability
of the above deductions for income tax purposes have been restricted due to previous changes in control
of companies in the group and may be further restricted if there are future changes in control. U.S. net
operating loss carry forwards of $3,735,000 are limited annually to an amount calculated by reference to
the fair market value of MicroPlanet, Inc. on the date of the change in ownership. The expected limitation
is approximately $600,000 per year.

13. COMMITMENT

The Company entered into a lease agreement for its office space commencing in August, 2004 and
expiring in July, 2007. The Company is committed to make approximate annual minimum lease
payments as follows:

2007 $ 22,000

14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During 2005, the Company entered into a sales representative agreement with a private company called
GreenVolt Energy Savings Corp. (“GreenVolt”), in which certain current directors of the Company have an
ownership interest. Pursuant to this agreement, GreenVolt is responsible for promotion and sales efforts
in Canada and may be paid commissions for sales therein.

During 2006, $11,250 in deferred compensation payable to one of the Company’s directors was used to
settle a trade receivable from GreenVolt, in which this director has an ownership interest. During 2005 the
Company paid C$150,000 to GreenVolt to assist in establishing a Canadian market for the Company’s
products. This amount was recognized as a marketing expense in U.S. dollar equivalent of $120,588.

During 2006, the Company earned $11,250 (2005: $nil) in revenues from GreenVolt.

During 2006, the Company incurred $126,000 (2005: $96,000) in compensation expenditures to directors.
At year end, there are no amounts payable to directors (2005: $102,000) included in deferred
compensation (note 8).

During 2006, the Company issued 510,500 shares to a director in connection with an equity financing
(note 10(h)).

All related party transactions have been recorded at the exchange amount, which is the amount of
consideration established and agreed to by the related parties. The exchange amount was negotiated
between the independent officers and directors who are unrelated to the transaction and the related party
to the transaction.
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MicroPlanet Technology Corp.
Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

December 31, 2007 and 2006



MicroPlanet Technology Corp.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States dollars)
December 31, 2007 and 2006

14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company has entered into a sales representative agreement with a private company called
GreenVolt Energy Savings Corp. (“GreenVolt”), in which certain current directors of the Company have an
ownership interest. Pursuant to this agreement, GreenVolt is responsible for promotion and sales efforts
in Canada and may be paid commissions for sales therein. There were no commissions paid to
GreenVolt in 2006 or 2007.

During 2006, the Company earned $11,250 in revenues from GreenVolt. During 2006, $11,250 in
deferred compensation payable to one of the Company’s directors was used to settle a trade receivable
from GreenVolt, in which this director has an ownership interest.

During 2007, the Company entered into an agreement with a syndicate of lenders to provide up to a
C$1.75 million standby Line of Credit (note 16). In connection with this credit facility, a 3% finders fee of
C$52,500 is payable to a company controlled by a Director of the Company and is included in accounts
payable and accrued liabilities. Certain Directors of the Company are lenders in the syndicate for an
aggregate amount of C$650,000.

All related party transactions have been recorded at the exchange amount, which is the amount of
consideration established and agreed to by the related parties. The exchange amount was negotiated
between the independent officers and directors who are unrelated to the transaction and the related party
to the transaction.

15. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Carrying value and fair value of financial assets and liabilities at December 31, 2007 are summarized as
follows:

Carrying Value Fair Value
Held-for-trading $ 47,985 $ 47,985
Loans and receivables 3,544 3,544
Available-for-sale - -
Other financial liabilities 689,088 689,088

Other than those already disclosed the Company is not exposed to significant interest, credit or foreign
exchange risk.

16. CREDIT FACILITY

On December 14, 2007, the Company announced that it closed on an agreement to secure a standby
Line of Credit in the amount of C$1.75 million. The proceeds from this credit facility will be used to ramp
up production to deliver products for commercial orders received.
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MicroPlanet Technology Corp.

Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

December 31, 2008 and 2007



MicroPlanet Technology Corp.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States dollars)
December 31, 2008 and 2007

11. INCOME TAXES (continued)

As at December 31, 2008, the company had net operating loss carry forwards of approximately
$17,940,000 available to reduce income otherwise taxable in future years. These losses if not used will
expire as follows:

Canada us Total
December 31, 2014 $ 28,000 $ - $ 28,000
December 31, 2015 443,000 - 443,000
December 31, 2020 - 150,000 150,000
December 31, 2021 - 815,000 815,000
December 31, 2022 - 784,000 784,000
December 31, 2023 - 844,000 844,000
December 31, 2024 - 1,142,000 1,142,000
December 31, 2025 - 3,341,000 3,341,000
December 31, 2026 592,000 1,920,000 2,512,000
December 31, 2027 614,000 2,225,000 2,839,000
December 31, 2028 850,000 4,192,000 5,042,000

$ 2,527,000 $15,413,000 $ 17,940,000

The potential tax benefits related to the loss carry forwards and other temporary differences, the
application of which may be restricted, have not been recognized in these consolidated financial
statements as it is currently uncertain whether such assets will be realized in the carry forward period.
Also, the availability of the above deductions for income tax purposes have been restricted due to
previous changes in control of companies in the group and may be further restricted if there are future
changes in control. U.S. net operating loss carry forwards of $3,735,000 are limited annually to an
amount calculated by reference to the fair market value of MicroPlanet, Inc. on the date of the change in
ownership. The expected limitation is approximately $600,000 per year.

12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company has a sales representative agreement with a private company called GreenVolt Energy
Savings Corp. (“GreenVolt”), in which certain current directors of the Company have an ownership
interest. Pursuant to this agreement, GreenVolt is responsible for promotion and sales efforts in Canada
and may be paid commissions for sales therein. There were no commissions paid to GreenVolt in 2007
or 2008.

During 2007, the Company entered into an agreement with a syndicate of lenders to provide up to a
C$1,750,000 standby Line of Credit (note 15). In connection with this credit facility, a 3% finder's fee of
C$52,500 (US$51,790) was paid to a company controlled by a Director of the Company and expensed
during 2008. Certain Directors of the Company were lenders in the syndicate for an aggregate amount of
C$650,000.
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MicroPlanet Technology Corp.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States dollars)
December 31, 2008 and 2007

12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

All related party transactions have been recorded at the exchange amount, which is the amount of
consideration established and agreed to by the related parties. The exchange amount was negotiated
between the independent officers and directors who are unrelated to the transaction and the related party
to the transaction.

13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

For certain of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities, including cash and cash equivalents,
accounts receivable, deposits, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, the carrying amounts
approximate their fair values due to the relatively short periods to maturity of the instruments. The
classification and fair values of the Company’s financial instruments excluding equipment lease
obligations at December 31, 2008 and 2007 are summarized as follows:

2008 2007
Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value
Held-for-trading $ 644,992 $ 644,992 $ 47,985 $ 47,985
Loans and receivables 737,925 737,925 16,668 16,668
Available-for-sale - - - -
Other financial liabilities 631,771 631,771 689,088 689,088

The carrying value of equipment lease obligations approximates the fair value based on the interest rates
charged at market rates.

Financial Risk Management
() Credit Risk:

The Company’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its accounts receivable. The Company has a
limited number of customers, many of which are electric utilities. Historically, the Company has
not had to write off any receivables. As the Company'’s sales and number of customers increases,
the Company will evaluate whether an increased allowance for doubtful accounts is warranted.

The aging for the Company’s receivables is as follows:

Accounts

Receivable
Current $ 292,716
1 - 30 days 150,226
31 - 60 days -
61 - 90 days -
ower 90 days 78,240
Total $ 521,182

The Company has not provided any allowance for doubtful accounts related to these accounts
receivable. Subsequent to December 31, 2008, the entire amount over 90 days was collected in

full.
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	Affidavit No. 2 of W. Struss.pdf
	1. I am the President, CEO, and sole director of MicroPlanet Technology Corp. ("MTC" or the "Company"). I am also President, CEO, and sole director of MTC’s wholly-owned US subsidiary, MicroPlanet, Inc. ("MI"). As such, I have personal knowledge of th...
	2. All capitalized terms not otherwise defined in this Affidavit shall bear the meaning given to them in my Affidavit sworn on December 5, 2016 (the "Struss Affidavit No. 1") and all references to dollars or "$" in this Affidavit are in Canadian dolla...
	3. I make this Affidavit in response to a letter sent by Myron Tétreault to the email service list on December 12, 2016 (the "Tétreault Letter") and to correct an inadvertent error in an exhibit to the Struss Affidavit No. 1.
	4. In the Struss Affidavit No. 1 at paragraph 65(c), I attached a copy of a November 4, 2016 letter sent by my counsel, Alexis Teasdale to Brett Ironside's counsel David Mann as Exhibit "30".  The attachments to the November 4, 2016 letter, namely cop...
	5. In the Tétreault Letter, Mr. Tétreault asserts that he and Calafate Holdings Ltd. are creditors of MTC.  As noted in the minutes of the Reconvened Meeting at Exhibit "H" to the Report of Trustee on Proposal filed on December 6, 2016, MTC's records ...
	6. At paragraph 1 of the Tétreault Letter, Mr. Tétreault asserts that GreenVolt Energy Savings Corp. ("GEC") is a "valid creditor of [MTC]". As noted in the minutes of the Reconvened Meeting, Mr. Tétreault stated that he and Mr. Ironside are directors...
	7. I am informed by my review of MTC's Consolidated Audited Financial Statements for the years ended December 31, 2005, December 31, 2006, December 31, 2007, and December 31, 2008, true excerpts of which are attached hereto and marked as Exhibit "4", ...
	8. In paragraph 4 of the Tétreault Letter, Mr. Tétreault suggests that I made no meaningful efforts in the last two years to find a proposal that benefits anyone other than the Seattle Investors.  I have already described my significant efforts to pos...
	9. First, Mr. Tétreault's assertion fails to account for the time and effort required to deal with MI's failing operations. When I was appointed President and CEO of MTC, I had to orchestrate the closure of MI's offices and manufacturing facility, and...
	10. Second, in addition to the efforts described in the Struss Affidavit No. 1, I was engaged in ongoing discussions with various potential sources of financing or funding for MI's operations, none of which was successful, despite my efforts:
	(a) discussions with Craft 3 (the lender referred to in paragraph 50 of the Struss Affidavit No. 1), a nonprofit Community Development Financial Institution based in the US Pacific Northwest, which indicated that it could not invest until MI was unwou...
	(b) discussions with Origin Energy, an Australian-based oil and gas drilling company, to enter into a development agreement that would provide MI with US $1 Million in development fees, which were suspended after more than a year of negotiations due t...
	(c) discussions with Unison Networks Limited, a New Zealand-based utility, to enter into a distribution agreement that would provide MI with US $500,000 in upfront distribution fees, but which fell through after Unison's wholly-owned subsidiary ETEL L...
	(d) discussions with Maschinen Fabrik Reihausen ("MR"), a world leader in high and medium voltage regulation technology, which started in July 2015 and continued through to March 2016, but ultimately did not progress because MR did not wish to invest ...

	11. Paragraph 6 of the Tétreault Letter states, in part, that I am a creditor and shareholder of MI.  I am not a shareholder and although I have contributed my personal money to fund MI's ongoing operations, I do not hold any debt instruments to evide...
	12. At paragraph 9 of the Tétreault Letter, Mr. Tétreault states that he has had "numerous conversations" with, among others, me.  Since I was appointed President and CEO of MTC, I have had two, possibly three, telephone conversations with Mr. Tétreau...
	13. I make this Affidavit in support of MTC's application for orders approving the Amended Amended Proposal and the sale of the MTC Asset to EVI.
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